
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 06/25/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

AIM I 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

NYC CSD 23 

10/2017 

08/2017 

http://www.newvisions.org/aim1 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 214 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 167 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served 9, 10, 11, 12, Ungraded 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT Yes 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

l2. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS 

NAME OF CMO/EMO New Visions for Public Schools 

PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 205 E. 42nd Street 

CITY New York 

STATE NY 

ZIP CODE 10017 

EMAIL ADDRESS 

CONTACT PERSON NAME Melissa Marcus 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

No, just one site. 
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School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address 

1495 Herkimer 
Site 1 Street Brooklyn,

NY 11233 

Phone Number 

718 269 7090 

District/CSD Grades Served Receives Rental 
at Site (K 5, 6 9, Assistance for 
etc.) Which Grades (If

yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

NYC CSD 23 9 12 ungraded No 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Kristin Greer 

Kermit Patterson 

Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

Matt Gill 

Matt Gill 

Kristin Greer 

Kermit Patterson 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Co located Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 
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m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school 
will leave 
current co
location 

August 1,Site 1 2019 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
expand into 
current 
space? 

No 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
move to 
separate
space? 

If so, list the 
proposed
space and
year planned
for move 

School at Full 
Capacity at
Site 

AIM I has 
been 
approved to
relocate from 
its current 
DOE co

Yes location to a Yes 
new DOE co
location on 
the 
Brownsville 
HS Campus in
August 2019. 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 
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o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Melissa Marcus 

Position Senior Program Officer, Charter 

Phone/Extension 

Email 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/24 
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	Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 06/25/2019 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000070533&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&HSindicators=1&HScomposite=1&HSgr 
adrate=1&HScompgrowth=1&HSelp=1&HSprogress=1&HSchr 
onic=1&HScccr=1&HSpart=1&staffqual=1&regents=1&cohort 
=1&nyseslat=1 
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AIM Charter High School I 

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
PROGRESS REPORT 

Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute on: 

September 15, 2019 

By Kristin Greer, Principal and 
Melissa Marcus, Senior Program Officer, Charter 

1150 East New York Avenue 
Brooklyn, NY 11212 

718-269-7090 



    

              

      
        

         

 

 

 

 

    

  

   

  

   

  

    

   

   

 

 

 

          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Kristin Greer, Principal, Melissa Marcus, Senior Program Officer, and Brad Gunton, Vice President, 
School Systems & Data Analytics, New Visions for Public Schools prepared this 2018-19 
Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 

Elizabeth Chu Member 

Melanie Harris Member 

Sharon Hayes Member 

Garrett Lynch Chair 

Kelly Roman Member 

Marina Schreiber Treasurer 

Musa Ali Shama Secretary 

Becky Zofnass Member 

Kristin Greer has served as the principal since August 2015. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I, formerly ROADS Charter School I, was reopened in 2017 by 
New Visions Charter Management Organization with students in grades 9-12. 

Mission 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I provides youth who face the greatest obstacles to successful 
high school completion with the supports, experiences and opportunities they need to graduate 
high school prepared for a successful transition into a post-secondary academic or work 
preparatory program. 

Student Population 
Located in East New York Brooklyn, AIM I serves over-aged, under-credited youth, defined as 
students who are at least one grade behind their age cohort. Students who enroll are at least 15 
years old, have completed 7th grade, and been retained at least once. The school gives admissions 
priority to students who have been involved with the criminal justice system, the foster care system 
and/or child welfare system, and homeless or runaway youth. As of BEDS day 2018, 186 students 
were enrolled in AIM I. Of these students: 

● 90% are Black or Latino 
● 90% are economically disadvantaged 
● 47% are students with disabilities 
● 5% are English Language Learners 

Key Design Elements 
New Visions AIM Charter High Schools ensure the success of the students who they serve by an 
intentionally engineered, tightly organized and highly personalized set of academic experiences 
complemented by robust and integrated socioemotional supports. The core elements of the school 
model are designed to enable high levels of student engagement, timely progress towards meeting 
New York State graduation requirements and successful planning and transition into postsecondary 
academic or work preparatory programs. These core elements are as follows: 

● Evidence based and technology enabled administrative systems; 
● Defined post-secondary pathways, including: 

o Direct partnerships with post-secondary programs 
o Post-secondary planning foundations; 
o Pathway specific post-secondary preparation; 
o Outcome tracking; and 
o Alumni support; 

● Intensive and personalized academic supports, including: 
o Program assignment based on comprehensive diagnostic assessments; 
o Evidence based instructional design; and 
o Extended day academic supports; 

● Flexible and personalized academic programming; 
● Advisors for students, including: 

o Single point of contact with families; 
o Productive behavior management; and 
o Support for regular attendance; and 

● Intensive and integrated socioemotional supports. 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  Page 3 of 59 



    

              

    

      
 

      

      

   

  

            
          

      
         

            
     

           
           

     

 

    

 
 

  
  

 
 

   
    

   
  

  
 

 
  

  
 

  

  
 

      

      

 

   

        
      

            
        

         
          

          
      

 

 

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 

School Year 9 10 11 12 
Tota 

l 

2017-18 70 40 26 29 165 

2018-19 72 56 30 28 186 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their sixth year of high school 
after entering the 9th grade. For example, the 2013 Accountability Cohort consists of students who 
entered the 9th grade anywhere in the 2013-14 school year, were enrolled in the school on the 
state’s annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 2018-19 school year or 
graduated from the school prior to their sixth year, and either remained in the school for the rest of 
the year or left for an acceptable reason.  

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
sixth year of high school anywhere and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and 
remained in the school until June 30th of that year. 

Sixth Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Sixth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the Cohort’s 

Sixth Year 

Number 
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 
(Not including 

early graduates) 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 

June 30th 

2017-18 2012-13 2012 19 2 17 

2018-19 2013-14 2014 29 0 29 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade. Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the school’s Graduation Cohort. The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following: if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting 
program with documentation, transfer to homeschooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Sixth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Sixth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the Cohort’s 
Sixth Year 

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2017-18 2012-13 2012 17 81 98 

2018-19 2013-14 2013 28 44 72 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

Students will graduate with the option of pursuing additional education or entering the workforce. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day and 

remain enrolled through June 30th of the reporting year will earn at least ten credits. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of students in their first year at AIM I 
and examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation. The 
measure requires that, 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of 
BEDS day and remain enrolled through June 30th earn at least ten credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day and remained 
enrolled through June 30, 2019 earned at least ten credits, therefore not meeting this measure. 
Although AIM I did not meet this measure, the percentage of first year students earning ten or 
more credits increased three percentage points from last year. It is also notable that there were 20 
more first year students this year compared to last year. 

During the past year, AIM I implemented a targeted, yet unconventional approach to bridging 
students’ academic past to ensure a successful path towards graduation. The AIM House Model, 
implemented in SY18-19, enabled the school to support students during their first year at our 
school by ensuring they are connected with a house. Students are placed in one of the three houses 
in the model, based on their credit level and Regents exam attainment at the beginning of each 
year. Base Camp, where many first year students begin, has specific structures embedded, such as 
academic advising and goal-setting, to support first year students.  

Further, we continue to utilize an intentional scheduling and programming model to meet the 
broad academic and course needs of our diverse student population with a great deal of social 
emotional and special education needs. Specifically, with newly enrolled students, this 
programming model embeds social emotional supports and includes access to work based learning 
experiences that prepare students for careers, thus supporting students that have had difficulty re-
engaging in school and making adequate yearly progress. 

Percent of Students in their First Year at AIM I Earning At least Ten Credits in 2018 19 

School Year 
Number of 

Students in Their 
First Year at AIM I 

Percent Earning 
Ten Credits 

2017-18 38 37% 

2018-19 58 40% 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  Page 6 of 59 



    

              

  

        
       

          
        

           
     

           
          

      
    

       
           

       
       

     
        

   

 

    

               
         

 

           
         

         
             

 

   

              
      

   

       
        
     

     
       

       
      

        

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As mentioned above, the school enrolled 20 more new students, in comparison with last year’s 
total enrollment number of first year students. Through intentional scheduling and cultural 
structures, new students were focused around clear objectives towards meeting their academic 
goals. Through the House Model, the school has improved their ability to support students in their 
first year, and help them focus on academic progress. This includes entering students who have 
completed seventh grade, but not eighth grade. These students received foundational literacy and 
numeracy support to build their academic prowess, and to further prepare them for the Regents 
and future college/career entry exams. All Base Camp students (unless tested out) were enrolled in 
the algebra lab, foundational skills course, which was a non-credit bearing course, to prepare them 
for the algebra I sequence. Additionally, these students were provided a pre-algebra course that did 
not equate to a full credit, and served as a bridge to our algebra I course. This impacted the total 
number of credits that a Base Camp student could receive, in comparison to previous years. While 
this does not tell the full picture, it does have longitudinal data implications. AIM I’s focus for 
bridging learning gaps is a significant priority given the population of disenfranchised youth, and 
those that have had significant gaps in their learning. The AIM I House Model, and the foundational 
supports will further support credit accumulation and provide first year students with a roadmap 
for academic success. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students enrolled as of BEDS day and remain enrolled through June 30th of 
the reporting year, who have been at AIM I for more than one year, will earn at least eight credits. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of students who have been at AIM I 
for more than one year and examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit 
accumulation. The measure requires that, 65 percent of students who were enrolled as of BEDS day 
and remain enrolled through June 30th who have been at AIM I for more than one year earn at least 
eight credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty percent of students who have been at AIM I for more than one year and were enrolled as of 
BEDS day and remained enrolled through June 30, 2019 earned at least eight credits, therefore not 
meeting this measure. 

Although AIM I fell short of meeting this measure by 15 percentage points, the percentage of 
returning students earning at least eight credits increased 16 percentage points from last year. This 
increase is indicative of the targeted approaches towards intentional programming, academic 
advising, and diversified cohort structures. Additionally, AIM I focused on re-engaging and 
invigorating returning students through the House Model to provide students with individualized, 
grouped, and differentiated developmental supports, such as advisory groups, progress towards 
graduation events, family workshops, and academic goal-setting. As described in the measure 
above, the AIM redesign process resulted in the development and implementation of the AIM 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

House Model, which allowed AIM I to provide targeted supports centered on academic advisement, 
social emotional learning, trauma-informed approaches, re-engagement practices, and needs-based 
scheduling based on the credits and Regents attainment a student enters with. 

Percent of Students Who Have Been at AIM I for More Than One Year 
Earning at least Eight Credits in 2018 19 

Number of students 
Percent earning at 

School Year who have been at AIM I 
least eight credits 

more than one year 

2017-18 155 34% 

2018-19 92 50% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As mentioned, AIM I saw an increase of 16 percentage points after the first year of implementing 
and restructuring the school towards academic progress through various means, including the 
primary person model, differentiated scheduling, and the AIM House Model. While AIM I has not 
yet met this metric, there has been intense focus around supporting students, deemed as high 
school dropouts, re-engage and demonstrate academic progress. This increase of progress has 
specifically provided students with a wellness focus to support the social emotional barriers that 
attributed to lack of/low performance in their educational career. AIM I fosters a restorative 
practices culture to support students, not only with their social emotional learning, but also to 
restore academic disparities. With AIM I catering to students that have been at least one grade 
behind, and have completed seventh grade, many students are academically unprepared, and lack 
stamina towards academic completion. AIM I builds structures to establish and enhance these areas 
through multiple pathways, restorative practice, foundational courses, the primary person model, 
and a structured scheduling process. In addition, while the school did not meet this goal, there were 
19 (of the 92) additional students that were on the cusp of meeting this goal. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day will 

be retained through June 30th of the reporting year 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance for students in their first year at AIM 
I. This measure requires that 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as 
of BEDS day be retained through June 30th of 2019. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eighty-seven percent of students in their first year at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day were 
retained through June 30, 2019. AIM I met this measure and exceeded it by seven percentage 
points. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

AIM I achieved this measure by establishing a warm, welcoming, and highly motivating learning 
environment for new students. AIM I’s leadership focuses the entire community on establishing a 
safe haven for opportunity youth, students that possess high levels of trauma, and those that have 
been disenfranchised. Through the adoption of the Seven Leadership Levers (adapted from 
“Leveraging Leadership” by Bambrick-Santoyo), AIM I engages the cultural lever as a key pillar 
towards retaining students. Through intentional planning, AIM I aims to create a strong culture 
where learning thrives and the whole child is supported through trauma-informed approaches and 
social emotional learning (SEL). The school employs a primary person model, where each student 
has a counselor and success coach, that supported them on their path of success. Each student also 
has opportunities to connect with the school through the schools’ key model, the Engagement 
Pathways program. This multiple pathway opportunity gives students’ choice in selecting the types 
of postsecondary paths that they would like to experience during and after the school day.  

Each morning, students are greeted by a welcome team, that intentionally greets students with joy.  
The morning entry process is geared to provide students a wellness check-in with their direct 
success coach and/or team member. There are specific holistic needs provided (food, clothing, etc.), 
during entry and throughout the day. Following Maslow’s hierarchy of needs, AIM I provides each 
student an opportunity to address their barriers with a caring adult, and provides each student with 
answers to their needs (psychological, safety, belonging, esteem, and self-actualization).  

When students were disengaged or approaching disengagement, the school implemented tailored 
interventions to support the student with re-engagement through the primary person model or a 
success plan. Additionally, the school continues to implement a youth development structure that 
involves a tiered attendance policy, engagement pathway/postsecondary courses, social emotional 
assessments, and wellness assessments to properly gather and use data of students social 
emotional well-being. 

Retention Rate for Students in Their First Year at AIM I 

Retention Rate for First 
School Year 

Year Students at AIM I 

2017-18 97% 

2018-19 87% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

As mentioned previously, AIM I achieved this measure by intentionally focusing on building healthy 
and effective relationships with students that foster personal and academic success. Through the 
primary person model, students that have dealt with high levels of trauma and significant personal 
barriers, experience a safe haven and learning environment for their success. The AIM I youth 
development structure supports all students towards personal, social emotional, and academic 
success. 

Additionally, AIM I engaged in an intake process that encapsulated the following: 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Intake Welcome- A welcome conservation with students/families/caring adults to acclimate new 
family members to the school community. 

Intake Survey- A brief survey is administered to assess student barriers. The student meets with an 
advocate counselor who administers the survey. This is completed as part of the enrollment 
process. 

Intake Interviewing- Based on the student’s responses from the intake survey, the student is paired 
with an advocate counselor. During the first meeting between the student and advocate counselor, 
approximately one hour is spent administering the intake interview questionnaire. This helps the 
counselor get a better understanding of the student and the student’s needs. All documentation is 
securely kept in the student’s YD records. 

Intervention Plan: Success Roadmap- An intervention plan is developed based on the results from 
the social emotional assessment and the intake interview and survey process. A list of goals is 
developed to identify the student's academic resiliency and/or early warning indicators. Goal-
setting is at the forefront of this process and helps gauge the overall development of each student. 

Progress Update- Goal-tracking, adjustment of interventions, and review of social emotional 
supports is ongoing and takes place twice during each trimester. 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 70 percent of all students at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day will be retained 
through June 30th of the reporting year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance for all students at AIM I. This 
measure requires that 70 percent of all students at AIM I who were enrolled as of BEDS day be 
retained through June 30th of 2019. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Eighty-one percent of students who were enrolled as of BEDS day were retained through June 30, 
2019. AIM I met this measure and exceeded it by eleven percentage points. 

As described in the measure above, AIM I achieved this measure by focusing on positive encounters 
with students that are built on pillars of transformation, including relationships. In addition, AIM I 
establishes a warm, welcoming, and highly motivating learning environment for all students, as well 
as returning students, thus contributing to our retention of students. Based on returning students’ 
track record, AIM I developed specific approaches towards increasing attendance and retention, 
such as: attendance incentives, implementation of a rewards system, and attendance incentives.  
This process involved goals and programming with students related to their Houses. 

Retention Rate for All Students 

School Year Retention Rate 

2017-18 93% 

2018-19 81% 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Although the school met this measure, there was a decrease in the percentage of students retained 
as compared to the previous year. The school continues to provide students with engagement 
opportunities, for students that were disengaged or approaching disengagement, as well as success 
plans, for those considering transition. This process helps support students to focus on bridging 
gaps in their learning, connecting their educational journey, and meet their holistic needs. AIM I will 
continue to exceed this metric through all of the aforementioned approaches. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least 
two of the five exams required for graduation, which may include one of the NYSED-Approved 
Pathway Assessments in CDOS 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on the passage of exams required for graduation. The 
measure requires that 65 percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have scored at or above 
proficiency, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least two of the five 
exams required for graduation, which may include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway 
Assessments in CDOS. In August of 2019, the 2015 cohort will have completed its fourth year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Twenty-nine percent of students in the 2015 cohort have scored at or above proficiency, or at least 
55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at least two of the five exams required for 
graduation, therefore not meeting this measure. 

AIM I has focused on re-engaging students of this cohort to ensure that their academic progress 
towards graduation can be fulfilled at AIM I. AIM I has prepared and provided students with 
Regents readiness coursework to meet the gaps that ensue for transfer students that have 
transferred from other schools. By engaging in mock Regents exam cycles, AIM I provided students 
with multiple opportunities for practice, including offering the Career Developmental & 
Occupational Studies (CDOS) course and exam to prepare students for work readiness. Additionally, 
tailored Regents preparatory programs were provided for students near graduation, as well as each 
core content area course is embedded with Regents preparation, as aligned to the curriculum. 

This year, AIM I will continue to focus on individualized and targeted interventions, bridging 
learning gaps by providing foundational skills supports, and Regents prep supports. AIM I teachers 
will engage in an item analysis of the most recent Regents in order to use this data to plan and 
engage students in effectively preparing for the upcoming Regents exams. Furthermore, students in 
their fourth year will engage in a process of analyzing their own results to ensure self-assessment 
and goal setting around Regents attainment. 
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Percent of Students in Fourth Year Cohort Passing Two Exams Required for Graduation 

School Year 
Cohort 

Designation 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Passing 

Two Exams 

2017-18 2014 89 36% 

2018-19 2015 79 29% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

This year AIM I used the House Model strategically to set supports in place for students with 
regards to Regents. Although AIM I did not meet this measure, through intentional planning, AIM I 
will be able to connect gaps in credit accumulation and Regents pass rates for students that transfer 
to the school with a disjointed academic experience. There is an opportunity for future growth in 
this area as fine tuning the processes above will lead to this. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 67 percent of students in the sixth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will 
graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students in the high school Graduation Cohort: those who entered the 9th 

grade as members of the 2013 cohort and graduated six years later. These data reflect August 
graduation rates.  At a minimum, these students have passed five Regents exams required for high 
school graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the 
requirements for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.1 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty-five percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort, graduated after six years, therefore not 
meeting this measure. 

Although, the school did not meet this measure, AIM I is making steady progress towards achieving 
this goal each year, as evidenced by the twenty-two percentage point increase in graduation rate 
for cohort 2013. Students that attend AIM I typically struggle with re-engagement to high school 
and some are court-mandated to attend. This requires the school to have a sense of urgency for all 
enrollees of AIM I. This year, the school continued to implement a thorough intake process which 
includes an intake survey (a brief survey that assesses student barriers), an intake interview (to 
further understand the student’s needs), a social emotional assessment (to assess student’s overall 
well-being, capacity, self-motivation and resiliency), an embedded advisory program, and an 
intervention plan for success. In addition to social emotional supports, the school provided 
individualized and targeted supports towards graduation, which included re-engagement, 

1 The state’s guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

graduation, and transition plans. The AIM House Model, intervention systems, and Engagement 
Pathways, helped to propel our students towards achieving this measure, therefore providing 
students with intentional planning and a clear focus towards graduation. 

In addition, AIM I utilized strategic data check-ins (SDCs), which are structured sets of conversations 
at critical decision points in the school year to ensure that students receive the opportunities and 
supports they need to graduate. These conversations are anchored in real-time student data that is 
centralized, transparent, and actionable through the New Visions Data Portal. 

The implementation of these routines and tools have positively impacted both team growth and 
school systems over the last year. School staff can now look at the same data and make collective 
decisions, thereby increasing the transparency of both information and the action taken in 
response. The numerous graduation planning, Regents planning and preparation, and credit gap 
SDCs conducted resulted in the following: 

● Active students had graduation plans that reflected the best possible outcome (and 
therefore the highest expectations) in terms of graduation date and diploma type. 

● Active students were planned for one or more January and/or June Regents exams based on 
clear and logical documented criteria accounting for graduation plan, historical transcript, 
and previous attempts. 

● Active students were programmed for courses or additional support activities that prepare 
them for the exams they are taking in January and June. 

● Active students were scheduled to earn four core course credits in each trimester of the 
school year. 

Unfortunately, many students in the 2013 cohort were enrolled under the previous institution and 
were negatively discharged prior to the school’s restructuring and reopening, thus contributing to 
the low six-year graduation rate. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Six Years 

Cohort Number in Percent 
School Year 

Designation Cohort Graduating 

2017-18 2012 98 13% 

2018-19 2013 72 35% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Given that students enter AIM I at varying places in regards to credits, Regents, educational gaps, 
age, housing, and other factors, we also look at the total number of graduates each year as a 
measure of progress. This school year, AIM I increased the number of graduates from 17 students 
graduating in SY17-18 to 25 students graduating in SY18-19. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, the Total Graduation Cohort in their sixth year will have a 75 percent persistence rate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines the persistence of students in the Graduation Cohort, those who entered 
the 9th grade as members of the 2013 cohort and are in their sixth year. The persistence rate is 
defined as the percentage of students in the Total Graduation Cohort who either earned a local or 
higher diploma, earned a high school equivalency (formerly known as GED), earned a CDOS, or were 
still enrolled in a school or programs with at least 50% attendance since February 1st of the 
reporting year. To achieve this measure, the Total Graduation Cohort in their sixth year will have a 
75 percent persistence rate. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2013 cohort had a persistence rate of 35%. Although AIM I’s 2013 cohort did not meet this 
measure, their persistence rate is 17 percentage points higher than last year’s cohort, doubling it. 

As mentioned in the previous measure, the implementation and use of the New Visions Data Portal, 
enabled the school to identify and accurately track the current state of each student. Through the 
previous mentioned structures, the AIM House Model, academic advising, and work based learning 
experiences, students engage in preparatory experiences for careers, thus supporting students that 
have had difficulty re-engaging in school and making adequate yearly progress. AIM I’s continued 
partnerships with workforce providers, such as Opportunities for a Better Tomorrow, to support 
with postsecondary transition, including enrollment in High School Equivalency programs and job 
readiness programs, promotes student persistence. AIM I will continue to offer enrolled students 
access to the AIM I Engagement Pathways program, which will enable students the opportunity to 
receive internships, industry credentials, and much more. 

The New Visions Data Portal provides AIM I with consistent access to high-priority student data, 
helping the school to make and monitor critical student planning and support decisions. As 
previously mentioned, AIM I uses the Portal to engage in strategic data check-ins (SDCs) throughout 
the year. This results in comprehensive plans for course enrollment, Regents registration and 
preparation, and academic, attendance, and social emotional supports which are visible to all 
school and New Visions staff in an integrated view with indicators of student progress. This 
foundational organizational infrastructure allows for individual student plans to be developed 
intentionally, implemented with fidelity and timeliness, and continually adjusted in light of 
evidence. 

Total Graduation Cohort Persistence Rate 

Cohort Persistence 
School Year 

Designation Rate 

2017-18 2012 18% 

2018-19 2013 35% 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

AIM I welcomes students from all educational backgrounds and disparities, which includes: students 
that may have started their high school career 4+ years ago at a previous school before transferring 
to AIM I; students that have not completed their eighth grade year in middle school; incarcerated 
students or in placement settings; students that are mandated to leave their homes to take on 
being a care-giver/parent for their families; and/or students that move out of state and lose touch 
with the school (please see chart below). All of these factors come into play when educating AIM I 
students, and therefore, meticulous differentiation and attention is necessary for their ongoing 
journey. The school has made progress in this area by conducting an in-take assessment that details 
all of the student barriers at enrollment. This intake assessment helps the Youth Development team 
at AIM I garner partnerships with community-based organizations, agencies, and other entities to 
support students. Last school year, AIM I partnered with Good Shepherd Services to support 
students with housing, employment, and other holistic needs. Additionally, due to a 41% population 
of youth that have court involvement/family court involvement, AIM I partnered with Youth 
Represent, an agency dedicated to improving the lives and futures of young people affected by the 
criminal justice system. For the last two years, AIM I has partnered with the Urban Yoga Foundation 
to establish holistic and wellness services for students to support their well-being. Urban Yoga 
Foundation provides AIM I students with mindful tools to increase awareness and focus, improve 
academic performance and engagement, and learn to self-regulate. This partnership helps AIM I 
teach social emotional competencies through the arts and serves as a therapeutic source for 
wellness. Finally, AIM I is connected with the JobsFirst initiative for transfer schools that pairs a 
school with a community-based organization, to provide employment and postsecondary 
opportunities. AIM I was paired with Opportunities for a Better Tomorrow (OBT), an organization 
that serves as a bridge to economic opportunity for youth, individuals, and families in underserved 
communities. OBT supports AIM I by providing students that transition from AIM I enrollment into a 
HSED (High School Equivalency Diploma) and employment training. 

Risk Factors Number of Students 

Housing Insecure 20 

Court Involved/Incarcerated Family Member 76 

Foster Care 17 

Welfare 75 

Mental Health (Family/Student) 8 

Witness/Victim of Domestic Abuse 23 

Teen Parent 16 
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Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the sixth year high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating 
will exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable transfer high schools. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their sixth year in the charter 
school’s Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in comparable transfer 
high schools.2 Given that students may take Regents exams through the summer of their sixth year, 
results for comparable transfer high schools of the current year are generally not available at this 
time. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty-five percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort graduated after six years compared to 50% of 
students in the 2012 cohort from comparable transfer high schools. AIM I fell short of meeting this 
measure by 15 percentage points. School data for comparable transfer high school’s 2013 cohort 
was not available for comparison at the time of this report. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Six Years Compared to Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School Cohort 
Charter School 

Comparable Transfer 
High Schools 

Year Designation Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2017-18 2012 98 13% 6,19 50% 

2018-19 2013 72 35% TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

2 The NV data team has established criteria to determine comparable transfer high schools using an unsupervised 

clustering model. 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  Page 16 of 59 



    

              

      

         

   

 
 

            
        

       
 

 
 

           
        
           

 

 
 

            
            

   
 

 
 

            
         

 

 
 

          
         

         
          

     

 

 
         

    
 

 
          

    
 

 
            

      
    

 

 

  

         
        

             
         

           

  
      

        
         

    
       

        
            

          
        

          

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 

In school year 2018-19, AIM I achieved two of eight measures of the high school graduation goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who 
were enrolled as of BEDS day and remain enrolled through June 
30th of the reporting year will earn at least ten credits. 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 65 percent of students enrolled as of BEDS day and 
remain enrolled through June 30th of the reporting year, who have 
been at AIM for more than one year will earn at least eight credits. 

Not Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 80 percent of students in their first year at AIM I who 
were enrolled as of BEDS day will be retained through June 30th of 
the reporting year. 

Achieved 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 70 percent of all students at AIM who were enrolled as of 
BEDS day will be retained through June 30th of the reporting year. 

Achieved 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will score at or above proficiency, or at 
least a 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on at 
least two of the five exams required for graduation, which may 
include one of the NYSED-Approved Pathway Assessments in CDOS. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, 67 percent of students in the sixth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, the Total Graduation Cohort in their sixth year will have a 
75 percent persistence rate. 

Not Achieved 

Comparative 
Each year, the percent of students in the sixth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating will exceed that of the Total Cohort 
from comparable transfer high schools. 

Not Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

AIM I plans to continue to establish and foster a welcoming school environment and culture, 
characterized by rigorous classroom experiences and Engagement Pathway enrichment programs. 
Our AIM is to help students champion life’s barriers and transform into productive citizens within 
our society. AIM I will continue to focus on meeting all measures under the high school graduation 
goal of our accountability plan and work towards success in the following ways: 

House Model 
AIM I will be in its second year of implementation of the house model. The AIM House Model 
consists of Base Camp, Peak, and Summit where credit needs and academic needs are balanced 
when planning for graduation. AIM I will continue to fine tune this system by being strategic in 
programming. Teachers will be assigned to a house, therefore providing stability/continuity to 
students within each house. Furthermore, advisory for each house will be co-taught by teachers 
that teach within a particular house. As AIM I has recently moved to a new facility, houses will be 
designated their own separate space, thus allowing each house to create their own environment to 
focus on their goals. In other words, Summit students will be separated from other houses, to 
ensure they remain focused on fulfilling the outstanding requirements for graduation, while Base 
Camp students’ will focus on achieving at minimum ten credits during their first year. In addition, all 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

students in Base Camp will continue to be enrolled in both ELA and math labs. All students in Peak 
will continue to be enrolled in either ELA or math Lab, and priority will be given based on 
standardized assessments. Students in Summit will be enrolled in ELA/math labs as needed. 

Students will receive instructional preparation prior to taking all Regent exams either through 
scheduled coursework and/or through additional preparatory activities. Individual student 
schedules will reflect credit needs, academic needs, and social emotional learning needs. 

Urban Assembly Resilient Scholars Program 
For school year 2019-20, AIM I will be utilizing the Urban Assembly Resilient Scholars Program 
(UARSP) as a social emotional learning (SEL) program. UARSP is a guided implementation model 
designed to test and support SEL in high schools. This program will support AIM I in the 
implementation, integration, and sustainability of high-quality SEL programming to improve school-
wide and out of school outcomes for all students. AIM I will institute the SEL competencies as a 
universal language: self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, and social management.  

An SEL team will be developed, which will take an inventory of all programs and activities currently 
at AIM I to identify which programs developed social emotional competencies, as well as better 
target supports that develop social emotional competencies. Next, the team will create a step-by-
step implementation plan for our school through SEL programming in the Implementation Rubric, 
utilizing the RSP Portal. Finally, AIM I will engage in a Sustainability Rubric to determine our 
organizational capacity to maintain program concepts and activities while collecting artifacts that 
support the rating. 

SEL Assessment 
AIM I will administer an SEL assessment at least twice a year to observe representations of the four 
social-emotional competencies. This assessment will provide the school with data that the school 
will use to enhance and further develop SEL through advisory, the primary person model, and 
school culture. The Devvereux Student Strengths Assessment (DESSA) will be utilized to provide the 
school feedback in supporting each student’s area(s) of growth. The SEL team will utilize data to 
inform and strengthen the SEL implementation in the following areas: 

● To frame SEL scores as opportunities for staff to provide students with supports to improve 
their SEL competencies; 

● Root SEL assessments in observed strength-based behaviors; 
● Connect SEL assessment outcomes to the programs organized in the Program Matrix to 

better leverage existing supports, and to create any necessary programs that would serve 
gaps highlighted by the data; 

● Adapt SEL direct instruction scope and sequences in response to SEL assessment outcomes 
● Roll out the logistics of the assessment to implementing staff; and 
● Create opportunities for SEL assessment reflection by varying community stakeholders, 

including for students. 

SEL Advisory & Curriculum 
AIM I will be utilizing the curriculum provided by UARSP to provide direct instruction to students 
around the areas of self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, and social management. 
The goals of this program is to enhance a child's social and emotional skills, which are essential to 
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academic achievement. Social skills include things like making and keeping friends, showing respect 
for others, and resolving agreements. Emotional skills include things like being able to recognize 
their own and other’s emotions, and showing healthy self-control. AIM I will be able to utilize this 
language in and out of the classroom as a way of redirecting students, as teachers and staff will 
have a common language to address persistent student issues. 

Primary Person Model 
The AIM I primary person model (PPM) ensures every student is connected to a caring adult who 
champions his or her education from the first day of school until graduation. By strengthening 
personal relationships in the school and providing a single point of service for every student to 
obtain needed supports, AIM I increases each students’ chances of academic success. The PPM 
provides a student advisor, that works closely with students to develop important personal skills to 
stay focused on their academic and postsecondary goals. The design fosters higher student 
attendance, reduces the number of dropouts, behavior issues, and suspension rate, enabling 
students to spend more time learning in school. 

Emphasis on Literacy and Numeracy 
In order to ensure that our students successfully master academic content AIM I will continue to 
implement a targeted and tiered approach to literacy and numeracy, targeting the lowest 
performing students and providing them with literacy and numeracy intervention courses. These 
courses are taught through research-based software, such as Read 180, System 44, Accelerated 
Math, and Math Facts in a Flash.  

Graduation Plans 
AIM I will continue to ensure that all active students have a graduation plan for success. All 
graduation plans are housed in the New Visions Data Portal, which all staff members can access.  
The graduation plans (as viewed in the Data Portal) provide data for the school around: credits, 
Regents, attendance, Regents preparatory activities, and much more. These plans are also used to 
support the AIM I programming team schedule students for Regents exams and graduation. In 
addition to programming, the graduation plans provide school staff with the opportunity to view 
the data and make collective decisions, thereby increasing the transparency of both information 
and the action taken in response. As previously mentioned, numerous graduation planning, Regents 
planning and preparation, credit gap, and data analysis meetings occur to: 

● Ensure active students have graduation plans that reflect the best possible outcome (and 
therefore the highest expectations) in terms of graduation date and diploma type. 

● Ensure active students are planned for Regents exams based on clear and logical 
documented criteria accounting for graduation plan, historical transcript, and previous 
attempts. 

● Ensure active students are programmed for courses or additional support activities that 
prepare them for the exams they are taking in January, June, or August. 

● Ensure active students are scheduled to earn specific core course credits in each trimester 
of the school year. 

Youth Development & Student Support Department: 
AIM I has enhanced the Youth Development team to incorporate a counseling team, student 
support team, and student advisory team to provide social emotional supports and other services 
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necessary to support the diverse needs of students attending AIM I. Through the enhancement of 
the Youth Development team AIM I will continue to provide and strengthen the following models of 
supports: 

● Primary Person Model - AIM I will implement and manage a primary person model 
● School Culture - AIM will imbed social emotional learning development 
● Coordinate Work Based Learning & Internship Opportunities for Students & Alumni - AIM I 

will secure a point person with a defined role, to support student postsecondary readiness 
plans 

● Systems to Manage and Coordinate Access to Ancillary Support Services - AIM I will 
coordinate of support partners to ensure effective management 

Intake Process 
AIM I has enhanced the intake process to ensure a successful route towards graduation, that 
includes the following: 

● Intake Welcome Meeting- A welcome conservation with students/families/caring adults to 
acclimate new family members to the school community. 

● Survey- A brief survey will be administered to assess student barriers. Student will meet 
with an advocate counselor who will administer the Survey.  This will be completed as part 
of the enrollment process. 

● Diagnostic/Social Emotional Assessment: Each student will complete a social emotional 
survey to assess students’ overall well-being, capacity, self-motivation and resiliency, for the 
purposes of tracking development in relationship with each student's academic 
achievement. 

● Intake Advisor Interview- Based on the student responses from the intake survey, a student 
would be paired with an advocate counselor. During the first meeting between student and 
advocate counselor, approximately one hour will be spent administering the intake 
interview questionnaire. This will help the counselor get a better understanding of the 
student and the student’s needs.  All documentation must be securely kept in the student’s 
YD records. 

● Intervention Plan: Success Roadmap- an intervention plan will be developed based on the 
results from the social emotional assessment and the intake interviewing & survey 
process. A list of goals will be developed to identify the student's academic resiliency 
and/or early warning indicators. Goal-setting will be at the forefront of this process and will 
help gauge the overall development of each student. 

● Progress Update: Goal-tracking phase and adjustment of interventions, and review of social 
emotional support will be ongoing and take place twice during each trimester. 
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GOAL 2: POSTSECONDARY OUTCOMES 

GOAL 2: Postsecondary Outcomes 

Students will be prepared for and pursue postsecondary options 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 80 percent of students who graduate in the reporting year will enroll in a two or four 
year accredited college, military service, technical/occupational institute, or gain employment 
within one year of their graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether AIM I has lived up to its mission is whether students are prepared 
for and pursue postsecondary options. AIM I will track and report the percentage of students who 
graduate in the reporting year who enroll in a two or four year accredited college, military service, 
technical/occupational institute, or gain employment within one year of their graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Matriculation and postsecondary outcome data for AIM I’s 2012 cohort was not available at the 
time of this report. Matriculation data from the National Student Clearinghouse will be reported 
out once it is received. In addition, counselors will collect other postsecondary outcomes including 
military service, technical/occupational institute, or employment. 

Percent of Graduates Enrolling in a Two or Four Year Accredited College, Military Service, 
Technical/Occupational Institute, or Gain Employment 

Percent of Graduates Enrolling 
in a Two or Four Year 

School Number of 
Accredited College, Military 

Year Graduates 
Service, Technical/Occupational 
Institute, or Gain Employment 

2017-18 17 TBD 
2018-19 25 TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Each year, we will improve the percentage of students who move into a postsecondary plan 
following the year they graduate by having the alumni and postsecondary support coordinator meet 
monthly with students to establish a clear pathway towards their postsecondary future. 
Additionally, the school will foster relationships with students that will enable strategic 
communication with their next steps. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the sixth year Accountability Cohort will demonstrate 
proficiency of CDOS learning standards. 

METHOD 

The school administers one of the nationally recognized work readiness credentialing assessments 
known as the SkillsUSA Workforce Ready Employability Assessment. This exam assesses 10 work 
readiness competencies aligned with the CDOS learning standards. The assessment cut score is 
73%.  This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least a 73% 
on the exam by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty-four percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort demonstrated proficiency of CDOS learning 
standards, therefore not meeting this measure. However, the percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 
cohort demonstrating proficiency of CDOS learning standards was 22 percentage points higher than 
the 2012 cohort. It is also notable that the 2013 cohort was larger than the 2012 cohort. 

AIM I provided CDOS opportunities to all potential graduates, and ensured that all students had an 
opportunity to partake. In this second year of implementation, AIM I provided CDOS workshops to 
the Summit House students as an opportunity to sit for the NYSED approved CDOS exam. The House 
Model supported this year’s increase by strategically preparing Summit and Base Camp students. 
AIM I conducted CDOS readiness workshops as a tertiary support for Base Camp students and 
provided workshops to Summit House as a targeted approach. Additionally, the school continues to 
offer postsecondary pathways for all students as a universal intervention that aligns to the CDOS 
learning standards, such as an internship program, vocational training, and college enrollment 
preparation. 

Proficiency Rate of CDOS Learning Standards by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort 

School Year 
Cohort 

Designation 
Number in 

Cohort 

Percent Demonstrating 
Proficiency of CDOS 
Learning Standards 

2017-18 2012 17 12% 

2018-19 2013 29 34% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Although AIM I did not achieve this goal, the school has more than doubled the percentage of 
students attaining this goal from the previous year. AIM I will continue to improve on its 
postsecondary pathways program. Additionally, the goal for the upcoming school year is to have all 
AIM I students graduate with an Engagement Pathway portfolio, that includes: internships; 
certifications; job-shadowing; and college acceptances. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Each year, 100 percent of students planned to graduate in the reporting year will complete a career 
readiness portfolio containing a career plan and skills employability profile. 

METHOD 

The school will maintain a career readiness portfolio which will include a career plan, skills employability 
profile, resume, and other artifacts which reflect career readiness milestones. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

One hundred percent of students planned to graduate in school year 2018-19 completed a career 
readiness portfolio, therefore meeting this measure. 

At AIM I, student advisors work to ensure that each student graduates with a viable postsecondary 
plan. The planning process begins when the student first enters AIM I and meets with his/her coach. 
The advisors/social workers/guidance counselors (Youth Development Team) work individually with 
each student on their caseload to develop a carefully mapped out plan that includes a career skills 
and interest assessment, college and career exploration, and internship opportunities. They also 
collaborate and co-create a postsecondary plan with structured goals and objectives to meet those 
goals for students on their caseload. Students engage in a range of experiences such as resume 
writing, college tours, work site visits, and FAFSA workshops. The advisors/social workers/guidance 
counselors stay in close communication with stakeholders, including administration, family 
members, dean, and teachers, to ensure transparent communication with his/her students. 

AIM I is part of a multi-school and multiple organization initiative focused on developing targeted 
career pathways through partnerships with workforce development organizations in the Brooklyn 
community. As part of a three year project, AIM I is working with the Opportunities for a Better 
Tomorrow program (OBT) as a local workforce development organizations with sector-based 
training and placement, to build career readiness for students at AIM I in the following three 
phases: career awareness and exploration (self-assessments, interviewing skills, networking, career 
research and exploration), advanced career development (work-based learning experiences like 
internships, job shadowing, organization and industry site visits), and sectoral postsecondary 
training (coding, web design, tech support, green maintenance and construction). The School 
Design Team, consisting of AIM I staff, the workforce partners, and JobsFirstNYC coaches, met every 
three weeks to build the structure for delivering career readiness, the details of implementation, 
and outcomes. 

AIM I also engaged students in college and career exploration in the following ways: 

● All students completed an Individual Career Plan during existing work readiness workshops 
or through advisory and counseling spaces conducted by AIM I and OBT; 

● The Youth Development Team conducted career readiness activities, events, and initiatives 
for career week in February; 

● Senior meetings: where students share their plans, dreams, and goals after high school; 
● The AIM I internship program; 
● Participation in college application week; 
● Day and overnight trips to college campuses; and 
● Ongoing preparation and administration of the LifeskillsUSA employability assessment. 
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Percent of Students Completing a Career Readiness Portfolio 

School Year 

2017-18 

2018-19 

Number of 
Students Planned 

to Graduate 

N/A 

29 

Percent of Students 
Completing a Career 
Readiness Portfolio 

N/A 

100% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s postsecondary enrollment rate by six months after high school for students 
in the sixth year Total Cohort will exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable transfer high 

schools. 

METHOD 

The school compares the postsecondary enrollment rate by six months after high school for 
students in the sixth year Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in comparable 
transfer high school. The postsecondary enrollment rate by six months after high school shows the 
percentage of students who graduated and enrolled in a two or four-year college, vocational 
program, or public service within six months of their transfer school graduation deadline. Due to 
the nature of this metric data will be lagged by one year. Data for this measure is provided by the 
NYC DOE School Quality Snapshot. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s postsecondary enrollment rate for cohort 2012 six months after high school graduation was 
5%. Cohort 2012 students from comparable transfer high schools had a postsecondary enrollment 
rate of 21%, therefore AIM I did not meet this measure. 

Postsecondary Enrollment Rate Six Months After High School Graduation 

School 
Year 

Cohort 
Charter School 

Number in Enrollment 

Comparable Transfer High 
Schools 

Number in Enrollment 
Cohort Rate Cohort Rate 

2017-18 2012 91 5% 619 21% 

2018-19 2013 72 TBD TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

SUMMARY OF THE POSTSECONDARY OUTCOME GOAL 

In school year 2018-19, AIM I achieved one of four measures of the postsecondary outcome goal. 
Data for one measure was not available at the time of this report. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 80 percent of graduates will enroll in a two or four 
year accredited college, military service, 
technical/occupational institute, or gain employment within 
one year of their graduation. 

TBD 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of students in the sixth year 
Accountability Cohort will demonstrate proficiency of CDOS 
learning standards. 

Not Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, 100 percent of students planned to graduate in the 
reporting year will complete a career readiness portfolio 
containing a career plan and skills employability profile. 

Achieved 

Comparative 

Each year, the school’s postsecondary enrollment rate by six 
months after high school for students in the sixth year Total 
Cohort will exceed that of the Total Cohort from comparable 
transfer high schools. 

Not Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

AIM I will continue to provide all students with postsecondary pathways that they can engage in 
throughout their experience at the school. The Engagement Pathways have been developed to 
provide students with a clear path towards success. AIM I will be hiring a college and career advisor 
to ensure that all students are enrolled in Engagement Pathway courses/enrichment programs to 
achieve academic success. Each student will continue to be expected to graduate with a high school 
diploma and a path towards postsecondary, including exposure in the following Engagement 
Pathways: 

● College Success – The College Success Pathway is designed to engage students who have 
the desire to attain a college degree upon graduation. Students will gain exposure and 
confidence on entering the university system through in and out of state campus tours, 
scholarship opportunities, hands-on financial aid assistance and standardized test tutoring. 

● Arts & Athletics – The Arts & Athletics pathway is for students interested in activities in 
areas of performing arts and/or sports. Students will graduate with an Engagement Pathway 
portfolio towards industry success and/or college enrollment. 

● 21st Century Workforce – The 21st Century Workforce pathway offers a variety of career 
exploration and job readiness programs for students interested in pursuing employment 
immediately after graduation – opportunities are offered both in-school and out-of-school. 
The internship program provides an opportunity for students to explore, research and 
prepare for careers by gaining workplace skills through internship placements, resume 
building, and access to professional certifications. Students will graduate with a workforce 
portfolio to support their search for full-time employment. 

● Vocational & Certification – The Vocational and Certification pathway is geared towards 
students who possess an interest in gaining skills and industry certifications in the areas of 
culinary arts, barbering/cosmetology, graphic design, and much more. Students will 
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participate in hands-on career focused curriculum taught by industry professionals, in 
addition to field trips and job shadowing opportunities. Students will graduate with industry 
credentials and opportunities for entry level employment. 

Career Development and Occupational Studies Credential (CDOS) 
AIM I will continue to provide students with the opportunity to earn the Career Development and 
Occupational Studies Credential (CDOS). The CDOS credential is designed to prepare students with 
the knowledge and skills needed for entry-level work. By participating in work-based learning 
opportunities and career and technical education (CTE) workshops/classes, AIM I students can 
better prepare for life after high school. These experiences may help shape students’ future careers 
and interests and are often a key part of a high-quality academic program. All AIM I students will be 
enrolled in a work based learning class and/or program to complete both options of the CDOS for 
the purposes of postsecondary success. 

Future Focus 
The school will establish partnerships and pathways to support youth while in school and after 
leaving AIM I, including job-shadowing, internships, and career exposure. Students will be exposed 
to on-the-job training programs and other related resources, including JobsFirst initiatives. Students 
will also be exposed to topics related to postsecondary readiness and exploration/competency 
developments (i.e. resume writing, interviewing skills, completing job applications, investigating 
postsecondary options, etc.) and the completion of the CDOS credential. 
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GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

GOAL 3: English Language Arts 

Students will be proficient readers and writers of the English language. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions ELA curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards 
and appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with 
content specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as 
group learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, 
close reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a 
new language and students with disabilities. 

The New Visions ELA curriculum is driven by an accessible, skills-based approach to literacy. 
Consisting of three year-long courses, the curricular units are organized by the conceptual lenses of 
the Individual, the Quest, and the American and spiral literacy skills across grades 9, 10, and 11. 
Within each course, unit plans provide assessments, resources, and strategies that unpack the skills 
needed to master the learning identified in the ELA Common Core Standards, as well as support the 
reading, writing, and thinking necessary for both the New York State Regents exams and 
postsecondary coursework. 

AIM I administered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This 
preparation opportunity helps to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma 
usually display during state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine 
where they stand with regards to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition.  

Additionally, during school year 2018-19, AIM I worked with two New Visions Instructional 
Specialists who provided onsite and remote coaching. Coaching included working with assistant 
principals and teacher teams to modify the ELA curriculum based on student performance and 
assessments and supporting teachers in planning and implementing consistent learning routines 
across all classrooms. Further, instructional specialists supported school instructional leaders in 
coaching teachers around these routines and supporting teachers to meaningfully adjust 
instruction. AIM I instructional leaders and teachers also attended numerous professional 
development sessions provided by New Visions, which were then turn-keyed at the school. 
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HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at or above 
Performance Level 3, or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the 
Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) by the completion of their sixth year in the 

cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered a Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut 
off for passing and meeting the requirements for graduation as scoring at or above Performance 
Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language 
Arts (Common Core) 3 or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines 
the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety 
net eligible students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-six percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort scored at or above Performance Level 3, or 
scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core). AIM I met this measure, exceeded it, and increased five percentage 
points from last year. 

During trimesters 1 and 2 of last school year, teachers received professional development on 
writing objectives and aligning objectives to assessment criteria. This PD was in response to 
classroom observation data and teacher needs. The focus was on aligning objectives to assessment 
criteria and content standards to support teachers in understanding how to provide multiple entry 
points for students by planning backwards from the assessment. This also provided opportunities to 
build in checks-for-understanding, allowing teachers to determine if they needed to adjust 
instruction to ensure students mastered the objective. 

Teachers also received professional development on literacy strategies to support student writing 
across content areas, which ultimately supported preparation for the ELA Regents exam. The reason 
for this focus was based on the number of students reading and writing below grade level and the 
literacy interventions students needed to pass Regents exams. Teachers looked at On Demand 
Writing and Performance Series student data to better understand current student needs. 
Additionally, AIM I engaged in the following instructional development activities: 

● Teachers received professional development on building complex sentences and paragraph 
strategies during school-wide professional development. 

3 Students in the 2012 and 2013 high school Accountability Cohorts may have taken the Regents Comprehensive English exam. 

As such, for 2017-18 and 2018-19, the Institute will continue to count any student who achieved at least a scale score of 75 (the 
previous target for college and career readiness) on that exam as having met the target for this measure. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

● Teachers received professional development during department meetings, from a New 
Visions Instructional Specialist, on accessible planning and received an accessible planning 
checklist, and instructional routines. 

In addition, ELA Regents preparation supports provided to all students contributed to cohort 2013’s 
achievement. Regents preparation activities included: 

● Strategic Data Process 
○ A Regents planning tool was developed to identify Regents supports, preparation, 

and to ensure each Regents administration included cohort-wide scheduling 
expectations to determine when students sit for the exam. This tool also supported 
course sequencing and programming. Students were scheduled in the Data Portal to 
determine the projected Regents date, and to track preparatory supports. 

○ Mock Regents data analysis was conducted to ensure that data from the exam was 
analyzed by staff. An action-planning tool supported teachers in using the mock 
Regents data to determine which content and skills to target during Regents prep 
sessions. 

● Embedded Classroom Supports 
○ All classes embedded test preparation strategies within the curriculum, as well as 

scaffolded practice Regents questions and questions from previous Regents exams. 
○ Students who were scheduled for a Regents exam were administered a mock 

Regents. Based on the data from the mock Regents, departments identified core 
skills which needed significant attention in order to improve student achievement. 

● After School Tutoring 
○ Intensive tutoring for 2 hours/2x a week 
○ Teacher led tutoring was offered 2-3 times per week, as well as Saturday Regents 

preparation 
● Regents Boot Camp 

○ An AIM Boot Camp was designed to hold students accountable towards making 
significant progress on the Regents exam within their Regents culminating course. 

Additionally, AIM I ensured required IEP supports and interventions for students were provided, 
this included: 

● Identifying students as at-risk via the Performance Series Reading assessment and through 
the AIM I intake process. 

● The AP SPED supporting general education and SPED teachers with strategies to support 
growth in the areas of co-planning, co-teaching, and differentiation. 

● Developing a literacy plan to support struggling readers using the tools Read 180 and 
System 44 through a literacy intervention course. 
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Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents English exam of students completing their 
fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the school’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) 
set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 

In the state’s revised calculation of the high school Performance Index, schools now receive 
additional credit for students scoring at Accountability Level 4.5 To achieve this measure, all tested 
students in the Accountability Cohort must have a PI that equals or exceeds the school’s 2018-19 
English language arts MIP for all students of 63.2. 

The Performance Index is calculated as such: (percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 2) 
+ 2*(percent of students scoring at Accountability Level 3) + 2.5 * (percent of students scoring at 
Accountability Level 4).  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. The basis for the percent of students is 
the school’s fourth year Accountability Cohort. The Regents Examination in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) is scored on a scale from 0 to 100; 0 to 64 is Accountability Level 1, 65 to 78 is 
Accountability Level 2; 79 to 84 is Accountability Level 3, and 85 to 100 is Accountability Level 4. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2015 cohort had an ELA Performance Index of 39, therefore not meeting the school’s 2018-
19 ELA Measure of Interim Progress of 63.2. Although this measure was not achieved, the 2015 
cohort’s ELA PI was three points higher than the 2014 cohort’s performance index of 36. 

It should be noted, this measure evaluates the performance of the fourth year Accountability 
Cohort as prescribed by the ESSA accountability system, which does not align to our school’s model 
of serving overage and under credited students. 

English Language Arts Performance Index (PI) 
For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level 
Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

50 72% 20% 2% 6% 

PI = 20 + 2 + 6 = 28 
2 + 6 = 8 

+ (.5)*6 = 0.03 
PI = 39 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

5 For more details on the score ranges used to determine Accountability Levels as distinguished from Performance 

Levels, see 
www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/documents/2017RegentsScoreRangesforAnnualandAccountabilityReporting.pdf 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  Page 31 of 59 



    

              

    

             
       

 

          
        

           
      

  

          
      

        
   

         
          

          

 
      

           

 
 

 

    
  

 
 

 
 

      
      

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI of comparable transfer high schools. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in comparable transfer high 
schools. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the results for the comparable transfer high schools is not yet available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2015 cohort had a ELA Performance Index of 39 compared to comparable transfer high 
schools’ 2014 cohort’s ELA Performance Index of 63.5, therefore not meeting the measure. School 
data for comparable transfer high school’s 2015 cohort was not available for comparison at the 
time of this report. 

It should be noted, this measure evaluates the performance of the fourth year Accountability 
Cohort as prescribed by the ESSA accountability system, which does not align to our school’s model 
or other transfer schools’ model of serving overage and under credited students. 

English Regents Performance Index (PI) 

of Fourth Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School 
Year 

Cohort 

Charter School 

Cohort 
PI 

Size 

Comparable Transfer 
High Schools 

Cohort 
PI 

Size 

2017-18 2014 36 43 63.5 777 
2018-19 2015 39 50 TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 
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Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 60 percent of students will grow from fall to spring according to their Lexile measures 
using the Performance Series Reading diagnostic assessment.6 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students to improve their Lexile measure from fall to spring. To achieve this measure, 60 percent of 
students who were enrolled during both the fall testing window and spring testing window will 
grow from fall to spring according to their Lexile measures using the Performance Series Reading 
diagnostic assessment. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Forty percent of students who were tested in both the fall and spring, showed growth according to 
their Lexile measures based on the Performance Series reading diagnostic assessment, therefore 
not meeting this measure. 

All students at AIM I are assessed via Performance Series, a web-based reading screener used to 
produce broad information about student reading skills. Students sit for the Performance Series in 
August/September or as soon as they are enrolled at AIM I, and again in April/May in order to 
measure for growth. This Lexile data is available immediately upon completion of the Performance 
Series; New Visions gathers and organizes the data so schools in the network can turnkey Lexile 
information to staff, students, and parents and use the data to inform instructional practices and to 
determine the students who require further testing. 

Performance Series provides a Lexile level in English, and students are sorted into Tier 1, Tier 2, or 
Tier 3 based on this information: 

● Tier 1: >1000L 
● Tier 2: 781-999L 
● Tier 3: <780L 

During the fall of 2018-19, 85% of students, who were enrolled during the fall and spring testing 
windows, sat for the Performance Series assessment. Based on the data, students fell within the 
following bands: 

● 23% - Tier 1 
● 25% - Tier 2 
● 52% - Tier 3 

Unfortunately, only 59% of students, who were enrolled during both testing windows, sat for the 
Performance Series assessment in the spring. Given the low participation rate during the spring 

6 Expected growth is calculated based on research conducted by Scholastic and MetaMetrics. These growth targets 

set higher gain expectations for students who start off with a lower entering Lexile. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

assessment administration, our ability to capture growth is limited to the smaller group of students 
who sat for the assessment in both the spring and fall. 

Percent of Students with Fall to Spring Growth Based on Lexile 

School Year 

Number of Students 
Enrolled During Fall 
and Spring Testing 

Window 

Number of 
Students 

Tested in Fall 
and Spring 

Percent of Students with 
Lexile Growth 

2017-18 158 54 52% 

2018-19 152 89 40% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for reading intervention will meet or exceed their 
expected Lexile growth goal based on SRI research.7 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its literacy intervention program by enabling students 
who were programmed for reading intervention to meet or exceed their expected Lexile growth 
goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Twenty-two percent of students programmed for reading intervention, who were tested in both the 
fall and the spring, met or exceeded their expected Lexile growth goal, therefore not meeting this 
measure. 

The school began the year focused on ensuring that literacy interventions were provided for 
students according to their Lexile and based on need. AIM I ensured an assessment process, that 
led to a literacy intervention plan. The plan included Read 180 and System 44 as a literacy 
intervention course for struggling readers. Attendance and truancy contributed to the school falling 
short of meeting this goal. 

Percent of Students Programmed for Reading Intervention 
Who Met or Exceeded their Expected Lexile Growth 

Number of Students 
Number of Students Percent of Students who 

Programed for Reading 
Year Programmed for Reading Met or Exceeded their 

Intervention and Tested 
Intervention Expected Lexile Growth 

in Fall and Spring 

2017-18 40 16 25% 

2018-19 29 23 22% 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

During school year 2018-19, the New Visions instructional specialist for interventions supported 
AIM I by providing coaching for intervention teachers and providing school leadership with a list of 
students eligible for Read 180 each trimester. During coaching sessions intervention teachers 
reviewed Read 180 literacy data and set goals for student and their practice. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent and the percentage of 
students from the prior year’s high school Accountability Cohort who scored at Performance Level 3 
on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core), or scored at least 55 using the safety 
net option for eligible students. After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent 
Accountability Cohort will continue to demonstrate growth. 

METHOD 

The school administered a Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently defines the cut 
off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance 
Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations), or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible 
students, on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). This measure examines 
the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 or scoring 55 
for safety net eligible students by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort in comparison to 
the previous year’s Accountability Cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2013 cohort’s ELA passage rate of 76% exceeds cohort 2012’s ELA passage rate of 71%, 
therefore meeting this measure. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on 
Regents English Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort 

School Year 2017-18 School Year 2018-19 

Cohort 2012 Cohort 2013 

Number in Cohort ELA Passage Number in Cohort ELA Passage 

17 71% 29 76% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

In school year 2018-19, AIM I achieved two of six measures of the high school English language arts 
goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will 
score at Performance Level 3, or score at least 55 using the safety net option 
for eligible students, on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common 
Core) by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, the Performance Index (”PI”) on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) of students completing their sixth year in the 
Accountability Cohort will meet the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set 
forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

Not Achieved 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in English Language Arts of students 
in the sixth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI 
of comparable transfer high schools. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 60 percent of students will grow from fall to spring according to 
their Lexile measures using the Performance Series Reading diagnostic 
assessment. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for reading intervention will 
meet or exceed their expected Lexile growth goal based on SRI research. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent and 
the percentage of students from the prior year’s high school Accountability 
Cohort who scored at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core), or scored at least 55 using the safety net 
option for eligible students. After reaching 50% proficiency, each subsequent 
Accountability Cohort will continue to demonstrate growth. 

Achieved 

ACTION PLAN 

In the 2019-20 school year, AIM I will continue to focus on achieving and exceeding all measures in 
the English language arts goal. Additionally, due to the vast academic needs and gaps of our 
students, the instructional priority will focus on using assessment data to drive instruction. AIM I’s 
instructional framework incorporates the regular and coordinated use of diagnostic and formative 
assessments to understand the content and skills that students have mastered. AIM I teachers will 
engage in concept mastery development to modify assessments and identify mastery of subject 
concepts. Time in department meetings and common-planning time will be devoted to utilizing, 
analyzing, disaggregating, and planning with assessment data that directly correlates with course 
concepts and student achievement. 

AIM I will continue to work with New Visions Instructional Specialists to provide onsite and remote 
coaching related to modifying and adapting curriculum. Instructional specialists will also work with 
the school’s instructional leaders to plan differentiated and department-specific supports for 
teachers around instructional routines and providing access for all students. Teachers will also 
receive coaching from Ramapo, an external organization, around utilizing a holistic, trauma-
informed pedagogical approach. Additionally, the AIM I Instructional Leadership Team will provide 
direct coaching and support to teachers around instructional and professional goals. Coaching will 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

include working with the assistant principal and the ELA department team to modify the ELA 
curriculum based on student performance and assessments. 

AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the Performance Series reading 
diagnostic assessment during the first trimester (and upon enrollment) to provide teachers, 
administrators, and students with a Lexile level. Lexile levels will continue to be used to identify 
students who are in need of additional diagnostic testing through the use of nationally normed 
assessments designed to determine if the student’s primary reading support needs are 
comprehension, fluency or decoding. This program will enable all students to focus on reading as 
part of each content area, and to devote a fluency approach to learning.  

As in previous years, the Performance Series data will help us to identify struggling readers and 
determine if they will benefit from an ELA credit bearing READ 180 course. In SY 2019-20, we will 
focus the Read 180 course on students that have severe learning deficits, as well as look at overall 
attendance, credit needs, and data on their ability to decode, to appropriately match students to 
the program. Further, Lexile levels will be used by classroom teachers to appropriately match 
readers to texts and will use the student’s Lexile level to determine if they are making progress 
towards college readiness reading levels. 

AIM I’s redefined lesson plans will continue to provide teachers with guidance to reflect and plan 
for modifications to meet all student needs. In addition, AIM I’s ELA department met to develop and 
plan concept mastery with the AIM II ELA teaching team. This collaboration will be fostered 
throughout the year for planning and learning purposes. 

Last school year, AIM I engaged in a structured coaching plan, and will continue to do so in the 
coming year. The coaching plan includes one-on-one coaching, mentor teachers, and a coaching 
and Instructional Specialist action plan detailed below. 

One-on-One Coaching 
One-on-one coaching will focus on one of the domains of New Visions’ Teaching Framework (as 
aligned to Danielson), which will help teachers build the strong foundation they need to be 
successful in classrooms and provide the building blocks that lead to rigorous tasks and 
differentiated instruction. Additionally, AIM I coaches will focus teachers on improving instruction 
to ensure high quality teaching, in the following areas: 

● Implementing high, clear expectations for students’ behavior and routines. 
● Clearly communicating standards-based content-language objective(s) for the lesson, 

connecting to larger rationale(s). 
● Intentionally using instructional methods and pacing to teach content-language objectives. 
● Implementing checks for understanding of content-language objective(s). 

Mentor Teachers: Peer Conferencing 
Mentor Teachers will support in building positive classroom cultures by initially looking at all 
classrooms through the lens of a positive, culturally responsive, and equitable environment. This 
includes: 

● demonstrating knowledge of, interest in, and respect for diverse students’ communities and 
cultures in a manner that increases equity; and 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

● fosters a motivational and respectful classroom environment. 

Coaching & Instructional Specialist Action Plan 
● Each teacher will have an instructional coach 
● Each teacher will receive PD supported by an Instructional Lead & Specialists 
● Coaching Focus Areas: 

○ Centered around goals (aligned to the Danielson Framework): 
■ Personal goal 
■ School-wide instructional goal 

○ Instructional Program 
■ Modifying instructional delivery: 

● Access for All: Instructional Specialist 
○ Will meet with co-teaching cohorts per trimester to center 

around co-planning and co-instructing, as well as modifying 
assessments/delivery. 

○ Will work with Instructional Leaders to enforce alignment. 
○ Will be in school once per week. 

● Instructional routines 
○ Will work with Instructional Leaders. 
○ Will work with department pairs to reinforce instructional 

routine development, planning, and the use of assessment 
data yielded from routine practice. 

● Classroom environment: Ramapo 
○ Will work with school team to enforce AIM I’s culture and 

climate model through the Ramapo toolkit. 
○ Will work with teachers as needed. 
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GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

GOAL 4: Mathematics 

Students will become proficient in the application of mathematical skills and concepts. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions math curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards 
and appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with 
content specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as 
group learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, 
close reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a 
new language and students with disabilities. 

This past year, AIM I instituted an RtI intervention system of support for students. AIM I math 
teachers provided a foundational skills lab to support students master skills and bridge learning 
gaps. This lab enabled students to practice at a differentiated rate, and fostered a personalized 
approach. This program also provided students with an early warning intervention for students that 
did not meet the algebra I grade level, based on the STAR Math assessment results. Over 100 
students were programmed for math labs throughout the year, based on need. 

AIM I also provided a bridge to the algebra I sequence by offering a pre-algebra course, that 
enabled students to master pre-algebraic concepts. This class was in addition to the lab, and was 
specifically for Base Camp students and those that had not fulfilled the algebra I sequence due to 
low performance and lack of mastery. This course was bridged with the New Visions math 
curriculum and the transitions to algebra curriculum. New Visions developed a scope and sequence 
that AIM I could use to ensure students would not be off-track for graduation. The math lab and 
transitions to algebra course, while appearing to slow down course progression, was intentionally 
designed by the school and New Visions network to bridge learning gaps for opportunity youth and 
students with significant learning disparities. 

To foster professional development, math pedagogues were trained on all math curriculum and 
learning software. Additionally, leaders and teachers attended numerous professional development 
sessions provided by New Visions, which were then turn-keyed at the school. 

Additionally, as mentioned previously, AIM I worked with two New Visions Instructional Specialists 
who provided onsite and remote coaching. Coaching included working with assistant principals and 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

teacher teams to modify the math curriculum based on student performance and assessments and 
supporting teachers in planning and implementing consistent learning routines across all 
classrooms. Instructional specialists also supported school instructional leaders in coaching teachers 
around these routines and supporting teachers to meaningfully adjust instruction. 

Finally AIM I offered mock Regents for practice and preparatory experiences to prepare students for 
academic success and to provide teachers with data to guide instructional practices. This 
preparation opportunity helps to decrease the level of test anxiety that students with trauma 
usually display during state exams. Furthermore, students are able to self-assess and determine 
where they stand with regards to Regents and thus help them prepare for the next rendition.  

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at or above 
Performance Level 3, or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on a 

Regents mathematics exam by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. 
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently 
defines the cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above 
Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics 
exams, or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of 
the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible 
students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-nine percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort scored at or above Performance Level 3, or 
scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on a Regents mathematics exam. 
AIM I met and exceeded this measure and improved two percentage points from last year. 

AIM I was able to meet and exceed this measure by providing mathematics Regents preparation 
supports for all students, embedding Regents preparation into course curriculum, offering mock 
Regents and Regents preparation activities, that included: 

● Regents Planning 
○ A Regents planning tool was developed to identify Regents supports, preparation, 

and to ensure each Regents administration included cohort-wide scheduling 
expectations to determine when students sit for the exam. This tool also supported 
course sequencing and programming. Students were scheduled in the Data Portal to 
determine the projected Regents date, and to track preparatory supports. 

● Mock Regents data analysis was conducted to ensure that data from the exam was analyzed 
by staff. An action-planning tool supported teachers in using the mock Regents data to 
determine which content and skills to target during Regents prep sessions. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

● Embedded Classroom Supports 
○ All classes embedded test preparation strategies within the curriculum, as well as 

scaffolded practice Regents questions and questions from previous Regents exams. 
○ Students who were scheduled for a Regents exam were administered a mock 

Regents. Based on the data from the mock Regents, departments identified core 
skills which needed significant attention in order to improve student achievement. 

● After School Tutoring 
○ Intensive tutoring for 2 hours/2x a week 
○ Teacher led tutoring is offered 2-3 times per week, as well as Saturday Regents 

preparation 

Additionally, AIM I ensured required IEP supports and interventions for students were provided, 
this included: 

● Identifying students as at-risk via the Performance Series assessment and through the AIM I 
intake process. 

● The AP SPED supporting general education and SPED teachers with strategies to support 
growth in the areas of co-planning, co-teaching, and differentiation. 

● Developing a numeracy intervention plan to support students struggling with numeracy 
through personalized and differentiated practice, including modification of the curriculum 
to ensure multiple access points. Including the development of the Math Lab and 
Transitions to Algebra course. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on a 
Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort7 

School Year 
Cohort 

Designation 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Passing with a 
score at Level 3 or 55 for 

safety net eligible students 
on Common Core exam 

2017-18 2012 17 77% 

2018-19 2013 29 79% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

It is important to note that cohort 2013 was larger than cohort 2012 and had a higher passage rate.  
This is attributed to the aforementioned programs and supports, but also to the emphasis on 
graduation that is embedded throughout the school’s culture. In addition, as seen in the table 
below, cohort 2014 has already met this measure, with 59% of students passing a math Regents, 
prior to completing their sixth year. 

Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam 
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Mathematics Performance Index (PI) For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 
Number in Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

50 82% 18% 0% 0% 

PI = 18 + 0 + 0 = 18 
0 + 0 = 0 

+ (.5)*0 = 0 
PI = 18 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI of comparable transfer high schools. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in comparable transfer high 
schools. Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the results for the comparable transfer schools is not yet available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2015 cohort had a math Performance Index of 18, compared to the 2014 cohort of 
comparable transfer high schools’ math Performance Index of 40.2, therefore not meeting the 
measure. School data for comparable transfer high schools’ 2015 cohort was not available for 
comparison at the time of this report. 

It should be noted, this measure evaluates the performance of the fourth year Accountability 
Cohort as prescribed by the ESSA accountability system, which does not align to our school’s model 
or other transfer schools’ model of serving overage and under credited students. 

Mathematics Regents Performance Index (PI) 
of Fourth Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School Year Cohort 

Charter School Comparable Transfer 
High Schools 

PI 
Cohort 

Size 
PI 

Cohort 
Size 

2017-18 2014 18.6 43 40.2 777 

2018-19 2015 18 50 TBD TBD 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 60 percent of students will increase their scaled score from fall to spring using STAR 
Math.9 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students to 
improve their scaled score from fall to spring. To achieve this measure, 60 percent of students who 
were enrolled during both the fall testing window and spring testing window will grow from fall to 
spring according to their scaled score using STAR Math. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Fifty-one percent of students, who were tested during both testing windows, increased their scaled 
score from fall to spring based on the STAR Math assessment. AIM I fell short of meeting this 
measure by nine percentage points. 

Star Math serves as the school’s universal screener and diagnostic assessment. All students take the 
Star Math numeracy diagnostic assessment during orientation at the start of the school year to 
provide teachers, administrators, and students with numeracy baseline data. 

During fall 2018, 77% of students, who were enrolled during the fall and spring testing window, sat 
for the STAR Math assessment. Unfortunately, only 50% of students, who were enrolled during 
both testing windows, sat for the STAR Math assessment in the spring. 

Similar to the literacy growth metric, given the low participation rate during the spring assessment 
administration, our ability to capture growth is limited to the smaller group of students who sat for 
the assessment in both the spring and fall. 

These scores were used to determine which students would best benefit from being enrolled in 
math lab and as a baseline to determine appropriate interventions. Students attended math lab on 
an alternating day schedule. Students placed in math lab, engaged in a blended learning, 
independent practice experience, that combined foundational skills growth with algebra Regents 
skills. The intervention programs used in math lab, were Accelerated Math and Math Facts in a 
Flash. In addition to the math lab class, all students enrolled in Base Camp algebra, were taught 
utilizing the curriculum from transitions to algebra and New Visions algebra I curriculum. 

9 Student Growth Percentiles (SGP) use quantile regression to provide a measure of how much a student changed 

from one STAR testing window to the next relative to other students with similar starting scores. SGPs range from 
1–99; lower numbers indicate lower relative growth and higher numbers indicate higher relative growth. 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  Page 44 of 59 



    

              

       

   

   
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

    
 

    

    

 

  

 

 

    

          

      

 

        
         

  

  

           
     

   

         
        

       
        

              
          

      
        

     

      
        

                                                        
              

              
            

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Percent of Students with Increased Scaled Score from Fall to Spring 

School Year 

2017-18 

2018-19 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Number of Students Number of 
Enrolled During Fall Students Percent of Students with 
and Spring Testing Tested in Fall Increased Scaled Scores 

Window and Spring 

N/A N/A N/A 

152 76 51% 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for mathematics intervention will meet or exceed 

their norm-referenced growth goal from fall to spring.10 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics intervention program by enabling 
students who were programmed for mathematics intervention to meet or exceed their norm-
referenced growth goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Thirty percent of students programmed for math intervention, who were tested during both testing 
windows, met or exceeded their norm-referenced growth goal from fall to spring, therefore AIM I 
did not meet this measure. 

AIM I developed the math skills lab course as an intervention for students that did not meet the 
grade level requirement for skills mastered to enter the algebra I curriculum. Math skills was 
designed to build students mathematical understanding and fluency through targeted, individual 
intervention based on students’ current level of understanding and performance. In this course 
math educators used two different programs, Math Facts in a Flash and Accelerated Math 2.0 to 
support reaching our goal. In addition, students regularly participated in teacher led small-group 
workshops. This course was designed as a foundation for all future mathematics courses. 
Throughout the course, common core standards are taught and reinforced as students learn how to 
apply the concepts in real life situations. 

Course Objectives & Goals: The course will focus around specific social and mathematical goals, 
centered on shifting students towards a growth mindset. The goals of the course are: 

10 Student Growth Percentiles (SGP) use quantile regression to provide a measure of how much a student changed 

from one STAR testing window to the next relative to other students with similar starting scores. SGPs range from 
1–99; lower numbers indicate lower relative growth and higher numbers indicate higher relative growth. 
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● Students will learn the value of taking time to think about math and listen to how others make 
sense of their work to arrive at a common understanding. 

● Students will build the habits of using precise language, practicing, and sharing their thoughts. 
● Overall, students will be able to strengthen and improve their understanding and fluency in 

the subject of mathematics. 

Percent of Students Programmed for Mathematics Intervention Who Met or Exceeded their Norm 
Referenced Growth Goal from Fall to Spring 

Number of Students Number of Students 
Percent of Students who Met 

School Programed for Programed for Mathematics 
or Exceeded their Growth 

Year Mathematics Intervention and Tested in 
Goal 

Intervention Fall and Spring 

2017-18 N/A N/A N/A 

2018-19 111 70 30% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent and the percentage of 
students from the prior year’s high school Accountability Cohort who scored at Performance Level 
3, or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the Regents 
mathematics exam. After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent Accountability Cohort 
will continue to demonstrate growth. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate.  
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100. The State Education Department currently 
defines the cut off for passing and meeting the requirement for graduation as scoring at or above 
Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics 
exams, or scoring at least 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure examines the percent of 
the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3, or 55 for safety net eligible 
students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort in comparison to the previous year’s 
Accountability Cohort. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s 2013 cohort’s math passage rate of 79% exceeds cohort 2012’s math passage rate of 77%, 
therefore meeting this measure. 

AIM I was able to meet and exceed this measure by providing mathematics Regents preparation 
supports for all students, embedding Regents preparation into course curriculum, offering mock 
Regents and Regents preparation activities, that included: 
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● Regents planning; 
● mock Regents data analysis and action planning; 
● embedded classroom supports; and 
● intensive tutoring supports. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 or 55 for Safety Net Eligible Students on a 
Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam by Sixth Year Accountability Cohort 

School Year 2017-18 School Year 2018-19 

Cohort 2012 Cohort 2013 

Number in Cohort Math Passage Number in Cohort Math Passage 

17 77% 29 79% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 

In school year 2018-19, AIM I achieved two of six measures of the high school mathematics goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will score at Performance Level 3, or score at least 55 using the safety net 
option for eligible students, on the Regents mathematics exam by the 
completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

Achieved 

Absolute 
Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents mathematics exam 
of students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will 
meet the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the school’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Not Achieved 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in mathematics of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed the PI of 
comparable transfer high schools. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 60 percent of students will increase their scaled score from fall to 
spring using STAR Math. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 
Each year, 50 percent of students programmed for mathematics 
intervention will meet or exceed their norm-referenced growth goal from 
fall to spring. 

Not Achieved 

Growth 

Each year, the school will reduce by one half the gap between 50 percent 
and the percentage of students from the prior year’s high school 
accountability cohort who scored at Performance Level 3, or scored at least 
55 using the safety net option for eligible students, on the Regents 
mathematics exam. After reaching 50 percent proficiency, each subsequent 
Accountability Cohort will continue to demonstrate growth. 

Achieved 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ACTION PLAN 

AIM I is developing an intervention and mathematics skills-based opportunity for students. In doing 
so, AIM I will refine and enhance the mathematics content development to ensure that all academic 
performance metrics are met in the coming year. The math department will continue to focus 
around a math sequence that supports and bridges the learning gaps that students have towards 
academic success. Therefore, AIM I has further enhanced the House Model to reflect the 
differentiated needs of specific student groups to ensure that alignment towards graduation is 
pivotal. 

This past school year, AIM I implemented the math skills lab intervention course that provided 
students with a personalized, and highly differentiated opportunity to practice and master 
foundational skills that are necessary for skill development. The school reviewed the data to 
structure the 2019-20 school year to identify opportunities for enhancement. One enhancement 
that will be implemented is embedding the math skills lab for all Base camp students, as a block 
period. This block period will offer students more instructional time to learn the course content 
objectives, as well as differentiated practice time. Our hope is to establish a correlation between 
the learning gap needs and the course content requirements. We hope to ensure that improvement 
is imminent due to this strategic intervention. 

Another specific step that AIM I will take will be to incorporate a concept mastery sequence for all 
math courses. AIM I teachers will modify the New Vision curriculum by breaking curriculum into 
“bite-sized” concepts for its students that come into the school severely lagging behind in the skills 
necessary to perform at the level specified by Common Core Standards. Teachers will engage in a 
cycle of mastery to bridge concepts, assess students, and remediate learning for students that have 
not demonstrated mastery.  AIM I will focus on assessing students on a tiered level: procedural, 
conceptual, and proof. Additionally, AIM I collaborated with AIM II to partner in the concept 
development process. This collaboration will be fostered throughout the year for planning and 
learning purposes. 

AIM I will continue to improve in ensuring all active students take the STAR Math assessment during 
the first trimester (and upon enrollment) to provide teachers, administrators, and students with a 
normative skills score. These scores will continue to be used to identify students who are in need of 
additional supports in attaining the math skills and subskills needed for mathematical fluency. STAR 
math will be used to assess students’ math levels and place them into the appropriate intervention 
and/or core course. 

The enhancement of the AIM I numeracy model, as detailed above, is designed to provide students 
with necessary interventions and embedded classroom supports. The model helps to identify 
deficiencies in foundational math skills and implement differentiated instruction to support 
numeracy development.  

Based on assessment results, students will be placed into appropriate tiers, to receive differentiated 
instruction within a block period, math course, and/or advanced math course, utilizing Renaissance 
Learning’s Programs: Math Facts in a Flash and Accelerated Math. The lab will support a tiered 
intervention process, including: 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

● Tier I – Independent math practice 
● Tier II – Guided math workshops (small group instruction) 
● Tier III – Math facts and foundational skills practice. 

AIM I’s redefined lesson plans will continue to provide teachers with guidance to reflect and plan 
for modifications to meet all students’ needs. All math department instructional staff will engage in 
professional development around analyzing data and making data-informed decisions, which will 
allow teachers to identify discrepancies between current and desired outcomes. Time in 
department meetings and common-planning time will be devoted towards utilizing, analyzing, 
disaggregating and planning with assessment data that directly correlates with course concepts and 
student achievement. 

During the 2019-20 school year AIM I will continue to work with New Visions Instructional 
Specialists to provide onsite and remote coaching related to modifying and adapting curriculum.  
Instructional specialists will also work with the school’s instructional leaders to plan differentiated 
and department-specific supports for teachers around instructional routines and providing access 
for all students. Teachers will also receive coaching from Ramapo, an external organization, around 
utilizing a holistic, trauma-informed pedagogical approach. Additionally, the AIM I Instructional 
Leadership Team will provide direct coaching and support to teachers around instructional and 
professional goals. Coaching will include working with the assistant principal and the math 
department team to modify the math curriculum based on student performance and assessments. 

As mentioned previously, last school year AIM I engaged in a structured coaching plan, and will 
continue to do so in the coming year. The coaching plan includes one-on-one coaching, mentor 
teachers, and a coaching and Instructional Specialist action plan detailed below. 

One-on-One Coaching 
One-on-one coaching will focus on one of the domains of New Visions Teaching Framework (as 
aligned to Danielson), which will help teachers build the strong foundation they need to be 
successful in classrooms and provide the building blocks that lead to rigorous tasks and 
differentiated instruction. Additionally, AIM I coaches will focus teachers on improving instruction 
to ensure high quality teaching, in the following areas: 

● Implementing high, clear expectations for students’ behavior and routines. 
● Clearly communicating standards-based content-language objective(s) for the lesson, 

connecting to larger rationale(s). 
● Intentionally using instructional methods and pacing to teach content-language objectives. 
● Implementing checks for understanding of content-language objective(s). 

Mentor Teachers: Peer Conferencing 
Mentor Teachers will support in building positive classroom cultures by initially looking at all 
classrooms through the lens of a positive, culturally responsive, and equitable environment. This 
includes: 

● demonstrating knowledge of, interest in and respect for diverse students’ communities and 
cultures in a manner that increases equity; and 

● fosters a motivational and respectful classroom environment. 
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Coaching & Instructional Specialists Action Plan 
● Each teacher will have an instructional coach 
● Each teacher will receive PD supported by an Instructional Lead & Specialists 
● Coaching Focus Areas: 

○ Centered around goals (aligned to the Danielson Framework): 
■ Personal goal 
■ School-wide instructional goal 

○ Instructional program 
■ Modifying Instructional Delivery: 

● Access for All: Instructional Specialist 
○ Will meet with co-teaching cohorts per trimester to center 

around co-planning and co-instructing, as well as modifying 
assessments/delivery. 

○ Will work with Instructional Leaders to enforce alignment. 
○ Will be in school once per week. 

● Instructional routines: 
○ Will work with Instructional Leaders. 
○ Will work with Department pairs to reinforce instructional 

routine development, planning, and the use of assessment 
data yielded from routine practice. 

● Classroom environment: Ramapo 
○ Will work with school team to enforce AIM I’s culture and 

climate model through the Ramapo toolkit. 
○ Will work with teachers as needed. 
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GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

GOAL 5: Science 

Students will meet state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in science. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions science curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards 
and appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with 
content specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as 
group learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, 
close reading, lab experiences, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a 
new language and students with disabilities. 

Formative and summative assessments are administered throughout each trimester with the added 
resource of professional development geared towards analyzing data to inform instruction. AIM I 
staff also attends ongoing instructional PD hosted by New Visions throughout the year. 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam, or score at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible 
students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics. The school administered Living 
Environment and Earth Science. It scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students must score at 
least 65 to pass, or 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure requires students in each 
Accountability Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by their sixth year in the 
cohort. Students may have taken a particular Regents science exam multiple times or have taken 
multiple science exams. Students have until the summer of their sixth year to pass a science exam. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Seventy-six percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort scored at least 65 on a Regents science exam 
or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students. AIM I met and exceeded this 
measure and increased 23 percentage points since last year. 

AIM I was able to meet and exceed this measure by providing science Regents preparation supports 
for all students, embedding Regents preparation into course curriculum, offering mock Regents and 
Regents preparation activities, that included: 

● Regents Planning 
○ A Regents planning tool was developed to identify Regents supports, preparation, 

and to ensure each Regents administration included cohort-wide scheduling 
expectations to determine when students sit for the exam. This tool also supported 
course sequencing and programming. Students were scheduled in the Data Portal to 
determine the projected Regents date, and to track preparatory supports. 

● Mock Regents data analysis was conducted to ensure that data from the exam was analyzed 
by staff. An action-planning tool supported teachers in using the mock Regents data to 
determine which content and skills to target during Regents prep sessions. 

● Embedded Classroom Supports 
○ All classes embedded test preparation strategies within the curriculum, as well as 

scaffolded practice Regents questions and questions from previous Regents exams. 
○ Students who were scheduled for a Regents exam were administered a mock 

Regents. Based on the data from the mock Regents, departments identified core 
skills which needed significant attention in order to improve student achievement. 

● Embedded Science Lab - in order to ensure that students complete the requirements to 
graduate AIM I embeds the science laboratory coursework as part of the students’ school 
day. 

● After School Tutoring 
○ Intensive tutoring for 2 hours/2x a week 
○ Teacher led tutoring is offered 2-3 times per week, as well as Saturday Regents 

preparation 

Additionally, AIM I ensured required IEP supports and interventions for students were provided, 
this included: 

● Identifying students as at-risk via the Performance Series assessment and through the AIM I 
intake process. 

● The AP SPED supporting general education and SPED teachers with strategies to support 
growth in the areas of co-planning, co-teaching, and differentiation. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixteen percent of students in AIM I’s 2015 total cohort scored at least 65 on a Regents science 
exam, compared to comparable transfer high school’s cohort 2014’s science pass rate of 36%, 
therefore not meeting this measure. School data for the 2015 cohort was not available for 
comparison at the time of this report. 

It should be noted; this measure compares fourth year Total Cohort performance rather than sixth 
year Total Cohort performance. Given that both AIM I and the comparable transfer high schools 
serve overage and under credited students it would be logical to compare sixth year performance 
data, however only fourth year performance data is publically available. 

Science Regents Passing Rate 
of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School 
Charter School 

Comparable Transfer 
High Schools 

year 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

2017-18 2014 20% 84 36% 777 

2018-19 2015 16% 79 TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 
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GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES 

Goal 6: Social Studies 

Students will meet state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in social studies. 

BACKGROUND 

AIM I uses New Visions’ high-quality instructional curriculum and resources that meet the highest 
learning standards. The New Visions social studies curriculum provides the following resources: 

● Common Scope and Sequence with content aligned to New York State Learning Standards 
and appropriate for courses terminating with New York State Regents Examinations. 

● Unit Plans outline the conceptual understandings and big ideas in each unit, along with 
content specifications and standards. 

● Teacher-Facing Resources including instructional guidance around use of activities such as 
group learning routines; and pacing calendars to guide daily classroom activities. 

● Student Tasks/Activities are sometimes differentiated and consist of vocabulary exercises, 
close reading, and content rich literacy activities. 

● Formative and Summative Assessments that offer students and teachers feedback on their 
progress. 

● Regents Resources include tools and curricular materials to support teachers making 
instructional decisions based on Regents and network-wide data. 

● Embedded Supports for Equal Access including support for students learning English as a 
new language and students with disabilities. 

The curriculum integrates rich primary and secondary texts, maps, images, videos, and other online 
sources into materials that meet the New York State K-12 Social Studies Framework’s objectives and 
provides students an opportunity to improve literacy skills by focusing on thinking critically while 
reading, writing, and speaking like historians. 

Formative and summative assessments are administered throughout each trimester with the added 
resource of professional development geared towards analyzing data to inform instruction. AIM I 
staff also attends ongoing instructional PD hosted by New Visions throughout the year. 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents social studies exam, or at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible 
students, by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State administers two high school social studies assessments: U.S. History and Global 
History.  In order to graduate, students must pass one of these Regents exams with a score of at 
least 65 or 55 for safety net eligible students. This measure requires students in each Accountability 
Cohort to pass one exam by the completion of their sixth year in the cohort. Students may have 
taken the exams multiple times and have until the summer of their sixth year to pass it. Once 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

students pass it, performance on subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their 
status as passing.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sixty-six percent of students in AIM I’s 2013 cohort scored at least 65 on a Regents social studies 
exam or scored at least 55 using the safety net option for eligible students. AIM I met this measure 
and exceeded it by 16 percentage points. Though we met the 50% benchmark, we did see a 
decrease from the previous cohort. 

AIM I was able to meet and exceed this measure by providing social studies Regents preparation 
supports for all students, embedding Regents preparation into course curriculum, offering mock 
Regents and Regents preparation activities, that included: 

● Regents Planning 
○ A Regents planning tool was developed to identify Regents supports, preparation, 

and to ensure each Regents administration included cohort-wide scheduling 
expectations to determine when students sit for the exam. This tool also supported 
course sequencing and programming. Students were scheduled in the Data Portal to 
determine the projected Regents date, and to track preparatory supports. 

● Mock Regents data analysis was conducted to ensure that data from the exam was analyzed 
by staff. An action-planning tool supported teachers in using the mock Regents data to 
determine which content and skills to target during Regents prep sessions. 

● Embedded Classroom Supports 
○ All classes embedded test preparation strategies within the curriculum, as well as 

scaffolded practice Regents questions and questions from previous Regents exams. 
○ Students who were scheduled for a Regents exam were administered a mock 

Regents.  Based on the data from the mock Regents, departments identified core 
skills which needed significant attention in order to improve student achievement. 

● After School Tutoring 
○ Intensive tutoring for 2 hours/2x a week 
○ Teacher led tutoring is offered 2-3 times per week, as well as Saturday Regents 

preparation 

Additionally, AIM I ensured required IEP supports and interventions for students were provided, 
this included: 

● Identifying students as at-risk via the Performance Series assessment and through the AIM I 
intake process. 

● The AP SPED supporting general education and SPED teachers with strategies to support 
growth in the areas of co-planning, co-teaching, and differentiation. 
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It should be noted; this measure compares fourth year Total Cohort performance rather than sixth 
year Total Cohort performance. Given that both AIM I and the comparable transfer high schools 
serve overage and under credited students it would be logical to compare sixth year performance 
data, however only fourth year performance data is publically available. 

Social Studies Regents Passing Rate 
of the High School Four Year Total Cohort by Charter School and Comparable Transfer High Schools 

School 
Charter School 

Comparable Transfer 
High Schools 

Year 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

Percent 
Passing 

Cohort 
Size 

2017-18 2014 N/A N/A 22% 777 

2018-19 2015 79 15% TBD TBD 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 
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GOAL 7: ESSA 

Goal 7: ESSA 

The school will remain in good standing. 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing: the state has not 

identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement. 

METHOD 

Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. 
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

AIM I’s ESSA accountability status for 2018-19 was Good Standing based on a finding by the 
Commissioner of extenuating or extraordinary circumstances.  

AIM I was preliminarily identified as CSI because cohort 2013’s four-year graduation rate was below 
67%. The school participated in the Transfer High School Automatic Appeals Processes and 
appealed its preliminary designation, and received a status of Good Standing. AIM I submitted a 
Plan for Improving Outcomes for Youth Placed At Risk to NYSED last winter, a requirement for 
schools to participate in the Transfer High School Automatic appeals process.  

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

N/A 

Accountability Status by Year 

Year Status 

2017-18 Good Standing 

2018-19 Good Standing* 

*Accountability status is based on a finding by the Commissioner of extenuating or extraordinary 
circumstances. 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/24/2019 • Last updated: 07/29/2019 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL ISection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 3803460 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 167 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 22775 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

458317 

71073 

529390 

3170 

2 / 2 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Visions AIM Charter High School 
I (the “School”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 



 

 
 

  
      

     
         

 
 

  
 

  
     

      
          

             
           

  
   

 
 
   
 
 
 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of New Visions AIM Charter High School I as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 30, 2019 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY 
October 30, 2019 



  
            
          

 

  

                    

                    

 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants receivable 
Due from related entities 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Property and equipment, net 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Due to related entities 
Due to NYC Department of Education 

NET ASSETS 
Net assets - without donor restrictions 

2019 

$ 546,227 
75,833 
83,724 

501,313 
29,871 

2,404 

$ 1,239,372 

$ 711,589 
90,120 
63,693 
39,734 

905,136 

334,236 

$ 1,239,372 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 

569,479 
75,288 

147,492 
4,136 
2,675 
3,809 

802,879 

137,564 
83,274 
74,480 
52,741 

348,059 

454,820 

802,879 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 

OPERATING REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
State and local per pupil operating revenue $ 3,609,859 
Government grants and contracts 299,549 

3,909,408 

EXPENSES 
Program services 4,031,901 
Management and general 525,083 

4,556,984 

(LOSS) INCOME FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS (647,576) 

SUPPORT AND OTHER INCOME 
Other income 521,704 
Interest income 5,288 

526,992 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (120,584) 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 454,820 

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 334,236 

$ 

$ 

2018 

3,343,255 
346,610 

3,689,865 

3,062,128 
376,972 

3,439,100 

250,765 

24,640 
1,263 

25,903 

276,668 

178,152 

454,820 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Personnel service costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 

Total salaries and staff 
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Management company fee 
Legal services 
Accounting and audit services 
Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Instructional supplies and materials 
Equipment and furnishings 
Staff development 
Marketing and recruitment 
Technology 
Food service 
Student services 
Office expense 
Depreciation 
Other 

No. of 
Positions 

8 
24 
32 

Program Services 

Regular Special 
Education Education 

$ 238,259 $ 220,075 
636,124 792,694 
874,383 1,012,769 
162,718 198,434 

36,851 42,684 
209,415 149,413 

1,942 1,385 
7,930 5,658 

529,777 372,946 
7,478 5,336 

19,175 13,681 
21,510 15,582 
11,641 8,138 

2,585 2,671 
4,442 4,665 

643 479 
55,961 40,381 
27,204 19,792 
48,927 34,873 
24,705 17,787 

796 568 
21,477 15,099 

$ 2,069,560 $ 1,962,341 

$ 

$ 

Total 

458,334 
1,428,818 
1,887,152 

361,152 
79,535 

358,828 
3,327 

13,588 
902,723 

12,814 
32,856 
37,092 
19,779 
5,256 
9,107 
1,122 

96,342 
46,996 
83,800 
42,492 

1,364 
36,576 

4,031,901 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General 

$ 384,215 
-

384,215 
68,875 
16,193 
10,876 

101 
7,295 
5,258 
5,780 

996 
1,386 

-
1,963 
1,576 

50 
4,900 
1,797 

-
13,540 

41 
241 

$ 525,083 

$ 

$ 

2019 

842,549 
1,428,818 
2,271,367 

430,027 
95,728 

369,704 
3,428 

20,883 
907,981 
18,594 
33,852 
38,478 
19,779 
7,219 

10,683 
1,172 

101,242 
48,793 
83,800 
56,032 

1,405 
36,817 

4,556,984 

-5- The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



                
                                                                        
                                                            

                                                    
                                                            
                                                    
                                                                                              
                                                    
                                                                     
                                                              
                                                                     
                                                                        
                                                                         
                                                                     
                                                                         
                                                              
                                                              
                                                                      
                                                              
                                                                                       
                                                                     

                            

 
NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

Personnel service costs 
Administrative staff personnel 
Instructional personnel 

Total salaries and staff 
Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Management company fee 
Accounting and audit services 
Other purchases of professional and consulting services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Instructional supplies and materials 
Equipment and furnishings 
Staff development 
Marketing and recruitment 
Technology 
Food service 
Student services 
Office expense 
Depreciation 
Other 

No. of 
Positions 

13 
15 
28 

Program Services 

Regular Special 
Education Education 

$ 347,651 $ 273,381 
612,417 468,329 
960,068 741,710 
165,773 137,216 

47,998 37,081 
191,508 134,624 

- -
180,791 126,133 

6,946 4,883 
18,653 12,915 
9,323 6,912 

15,216 9,782 
2,178 1,531 
3,842 7,978 
1,134 1,309 

51,250 35,061 
19,837 13,748 
41,755 26,857 
19,559 13,618 

267 188 
8,726 5,758 

$ 1,744,824 $ 1,317,304 

$ 

$ 

Total 

621,032 
1,080,746 
1,701,778 

302,989 
85,079 

326,132 
-

306,924 
11,829 
31,568 
16,235 
24,998 
3,709 

11,820 
2,443 

86,311 
33,585 
68,612 
33,177 

455 
14,484 

3,062,128 

Supporting 
Services 

Management 
and General 

$ 266,947 
-

266,947 
49,699 
13,346 
15,092 

2,115 
15,183 

625 
1,212 

897 
-

172 
417 
359 

3,106 
1,793 

-
5,797 

21 
191 

$ 376,972 

$ 

$ 

2018 

887,979 
1,080,746 
1,968,725 

352,688 
98,425 

341,224 
2,115 

322,107 
12,454 
32,780 
17,132 
24,998 
3,881 

12,237 
2,802 

89,417 
35,378 
68,612 
38,974 

476 
14,675 

3,439,100 

-6- The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



  
                          
                

                         

                                       

                         

            

  

  

                                   

                           
                          
                                     
                          
                           
                           
                        

  

  

  

 
NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from operating revenue $ 3,960,169 
Other cash received 526,992 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers (4,509,868) 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (22,707) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (22,707) 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - BEGINNING OF YEAR 644,767 

CASH AND CASH - RESTRICTED - END OF YEAR $ 622,060 

2018 

$ 3,502,296 
25,903 

(3,394,383) 

133,816 

(4,285) 

129,531 

515,236 

$ 644,767 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ (120,584) $ 276,668 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
 (used in) provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 1,405 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Grants receivable 63,768 (54,964) 
Due from related parties (497,177) (4,136) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (27,196) -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 574,025 94,691 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 6,846 (115,491) 
Due to related parties (10,787) 69,177 
Due to NYC Department of Education (13,007) (132,605) 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (22,707) $ 133,816 

Cash and cash - restricted consist of: 
Cash $ 546,227 $ 569,479 
Cash - restricted 75,833 75,288 

$ 622,060 $ 644,767 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

1. NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I (the “School”) is a New York State not-for-profit educational corporation that 
was incorporated on April 5, 2011 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 56 of the Educational Law of the 
State of New York. The School was granted a provisional charter on April 5, 2011, valid for a term of five years and 
renewable by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. The School’s charter was renewed 
and restructured for an additional five years, expiring in July 2022. 

The School opened its doors in the fall of 2012 in Brooklyn with a rigorous academic program and a highly 
structured and supportive school culture. While the School is comprised of students from many backgrounds, it is 
uniquely designed to meet the needs of at-risk students who are currently in the foster care and child welfare 
system. In connection with the restructuring of the School’s charter and change in management, the School’s legal 
name and Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) filing was changed from ROADS Charter School I to New Visions AIM 
Charter High School I during fiscal year 2018. 

The School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and a similar provision under New York State income tax 
laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 
509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. 

The School shares space with a New York City public school and is not responsible for rent, utilities, custodial 
services, maintenance, and school safety. Square footage totaling approximately 15,000 feet is allocated to the 
School. 

The New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) provides free lunches and transportation directly to a 
majority of the School’s students. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 

The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  It requires that the amounts for each of the two classes of net assets – with 
donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a statement of financial position and that the 
amount of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement of activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting the nature of the 
not-for-profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the purposes specified in its articles of 
incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed restrictions may be temporary in 
nature, such as stipulating that resources may be used only after a specified date or limited to specific 
programs or services. Certain donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature. 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is not 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both contributions not subject to 
donor restrictions and exchange transactions, such as state and local per pupil operating revenue. 

Cash - Restricted  

Included in cash – restricted is an escrow account of $75,833 and $75,288 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively, which is held aside for contingency purposes as required by the Board of Regents. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable represents amounts due from federal and state grants. Grants receivable are expected to be 
collected within one year, are recorded at net realizable value, and amount to $83,724 and $147,492 at June 30, 
2019 and 2018, respectively. The School has determined that no allowance for uncollectible accounts is necessary 
at June 30, 2019 and 2018. Such estimate is based on management’s assessment of the creditworthiness of its 
grantors, the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic conditions. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in substance, unconditional. 
Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with 
donor stipulations. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. 

Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and based on the number of 
students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and 
certain state and local funds are recorded when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agencies. 

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the NYCDOE. If the charter school laws 
were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely 
affected. 

Premises Provided by Government Authorities 

The School does not record any in-kind contributions and related costs with respect to dedicated and shared space 
provided to it by the NYCDOE as the premises are temporary in nature, is excess shared space whereby a fair 
value cannot be determined and is industry practice. 

Property and Equipment 

Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment acquired with certain government 
funding are recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which ownership of such property and 
equipment is retained by the funding source. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as they occur. The School has 
established a $3,000 threshold above which assets are evaluated to be capitalized. The School expenses 
leasehold improvements because it has no lease and is uncertain that the space will be available beyond the close 
of the current fiscal year. Removable equipment that can be transferred to new space, if necessary, is capitalized. 
Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows: 

Computer equipment        3 years 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the 
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes an 
impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

Advertising  

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $1,172 and $2,802 of advertising for the 
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in the accompanying statements of functional 
expenses under marketing and recruitment. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services 
benefited. 

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to program and supporting services. Expenses related to more than one 
function are charged to program and supporting services on the basis of the proportionate share of instructional and 
management and general expenses. Management and general expenses include those expenses that are not 
directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and direction of the School.

 Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated events through October 30, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Income Taxes 

The School follows the accounting standard for uncertainty in income taxes. The standard prescribes a minimum 
recognition threshold and measurement methodology that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance for 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure, and transition. 

The School files informational returns in the federal jurisdiction. With few exceptions, the School is no longer 
subject to federal income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2016. 

The School believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns. Nonetheless, the 
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ materially 
from the amounts accrued for each year. Management believes that its nonprofit status would be sustained upon 
examination. 

Should there be interest on underpayments of income tax, the School would classify it as interest expense. The 
School would classify penalties in connection with underpayments of income tax as other expense. 

The School is subject to tax reportable on Form 990T consisting of unrelated business income if they have provided 
pre-tax transportation benefits to employees. 

Reclassification 

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the June 30, 2019 
presentation. This reclassification had no effect on previously reported change in net assets. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement 

Financial Statement Presentation 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, Not-for-Profit 
Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update amends the 
current reporting model for not-for-profit organizations and enhances their required disclosures. The major changes 
include, but are not limited to: (a) requiring the presentation of two classes of net assets now titled “net assets 
without donor restrictions” and “net assets with donor restrictions,” (b) modifying the presentation of underwater 
endowment funds and related disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize the 
expirations on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor restrictions otherwise, (d) 
requiring the presentation of an analysis of expenses by function and nature, (e) requiring the disclosure of 
information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, and (f) presenting investment return net of external and 
direct internal investment expenses. In addition, the update removes the requirement that statements of cash flows 
using the direct method also present a reconciliation consistent with the indirect method.  The School has applied 
the update retrospectively to all periods presented and adjusted the presentation of these financial statements 
accordingly. As a result, the School reclassified amounts formerly classified as unrestricted net assets to net assets 
without donor restrictions. The adoption of this update had no other material effect on the School’s financial position 
and changes in net assets. In addition, the School has elected to continue to present a reconciliation in the 
statement of cash flows consistent with the indirect method. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update which 
affects the revenue recognition of entities that enter into either (1) certain contracts to transfer goods or services to 
customers or (2) certain contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates an entity should 
recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
the goods or services transferred by the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning of the year of 
implementation or retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and in 
interim periods in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted but no earlier 
than annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2016. The School is currently evaluating the effect the 
update will have on its financial statements. 

In June 2018, the FASB issued an accounting standards update in an effort to clarify and improve the scope and 
the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The FASB believes the update should 
assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (non-reciprocal 
transactions) within the scope of not-for-profit guidance, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transaction subject to other 
guidance and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional or not. The update is effective on a modified 
prospective basis for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted. The School is currently evaluating the potential 
accounting, transition, and disclosure effects the update will have on its financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which amends existing lease guidance. The 
update requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and related lease liability for many operating leases now 
currently off-balance-sheet under current U.S. GAAP. Also, the FASB has issued amendments to the update with 
practical expedients related to land easements, lessor accounting, and disclosures related to accounting changes 
and error corrections. The School is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its financial statements. 
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2. 

3. 

4. 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 

The update originally required transition to the new lease guidance using a modified retrospective approach which 
would reflect the application of the update as of the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. A 
subsequent amendment to the update provides an optional transition method that allows entities to initially apply 
the new lease guidance with a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of equity in the period of 
adoption. If this optional transition method is elected, after the adoption of the new lease guidance, the School’s 
presentation of comparative periods in the financial statements will continue to be in accordance with current lease 
accounting. The School is evaluating the method of adoption it will elect. The update is originally effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2020, with early application permitted. The effective dates have tentatively been extended to fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2020, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. 

LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES 

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities 
and other obligations come due. The School strives to maintain a cash reserve equal to a minimum of three months 
of operating expenses, with a target of three to six months. Cash is kept in interest-bearing bank accounts to 
maximize returns.   

The School’s financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for general 
expenditures are as follows:

 2019 2018 
Cash 
Cash - restricted 

 Grants receivable 
Due from related entities 

 Total financial assets 

$ 546,227 
75,833 
83,724 

501,313 

1,207,097 

$ 569,479 
75,288 

147,492 
4,136 

796,395 

Less amount unavailable for general expenditures  
within one year due to: 
        Restricted by contract with time or purpose (75,833) (75,288) 

Total financial assets available to management for  
general expenditures within one year $ 1,131,264 $ 721,107 

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School has no board designated net assets. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

New Visions for Public Schools (“New Visions”) is a not-for-profit organization dedicated to supporting public 
schools and helping start and manage charter schools. Pursuant to the terms of the educational services 
agreement by and between the School and New Visions beginning in fiscal year 2018, New Visions provides 
educational management, operational, and fundraising services to the School. As compensation to New Visions for 
these services rendered, the School pays 10% of all public revenue, defined as per-pupil revenues, received by the 
School during the year.  

- 12 -



 
 

 
  

  
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

    
  

  

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
   

 
  
   

   
  

  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

The balance due to New Visions from the School at June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $63,693 and $60,284, 
respectively, which is comprised of management fees. Total management fees incurred by the School for the years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled $369,704 and $341,224, respectively. 

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School also shares expenses with other charter schools 
related by common management. At June 30, 2019, there was no balance due to other charter schools and the 
balance due from other charter schools was $1,313. At June 30, 2018, the balance due to other charter schools 
was $14,196 and the balance due from other charter schools was $4,136. During fiscal year 2019, New Visions 
granted the School $500,000 to support services that were provided to the School during the year, which is 
included as due from relates entities in the accompanying statements of financial position. 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30,: 

2019 2018 
Computer equipment $ 4,285 4,285 
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,881) (476) 

$ 2 404 $ 3 809 

Depreciation expense was $1,405 and $476 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.  

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 

Grants receivable consist of federal and state entitlements and grants. The School expects to collect these 
receivables within one year. Grants receivable consist of the following as of June 30,: 

2019 2018 
Title I $ 46,130 $ 50,313 

 Title II 3,576 20,418 
 Title IV 6,000 -

NYS Additional Funding 
E-Rate Reimbursement 

-
28,018 

68,989 
7,772 

$ 83,724 $ 147,492 

PENSION PLAN 

The School has adopted the New Visions for Public Schools’ pension plan (the “Plan”) which is qualified under 
Internal Revenue Code 403(b) for the benefit of its eligible employees. The Plan is an elective contribution plan. 
Employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan once they have completed at least one full year of service and 
completion of 1,000 work hours, and are also eligible for discretionary employer contributions. The School’s 
contribution becomes fully vested after the sixth year of the employee’s service. Pension expense amounted to 
$95,728 and $98,425, net of forfeitures, for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included 
in retirement in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect itself from 
such risks. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The governmental 
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as additional funds for 
the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible disallowance or 
refund. 

9. COMMITMENTS 

The School leases office equipment and copiers under non-cancellable operating leases which will expire at various 
times during the next three years. The leasing expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $5,280 
and $4,674, respectively, which is included in the accompanying statements of functional expenses under office 
expense. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

June 30, 
2020 $ 4,788 
2021 4,788 
2022 1,197 

$ 10 773

10. CONCENTRATIONS 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at a 
major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits of 
$250,000. 

The School received approximately 81% and 90% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE for 
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The School’s grants receivable consists of two major grantors accounting for 100% at June 30, 2019 and three 
major grantors accounting for approximately 93% at June 30, 2018. 

One vendor accounted for 86% and three vendors accounted for 62% of accounts payable at June 30, 2019 and 
2018, respectively. 

- 14 -



  

 
 

     
    

    
 
 

 
 

 
 

      
             

           
   

  
 

  
 

    
       

  
  

 
  

     
    

   
    

               
    

 
         

           
  

    
    

 
 

 
   

          
  

        
         

        
  

 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Visions AIM Charter High 
School I (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the School in a separate letter dated October 
30, 2019. 



 

 
 

 
   

              
    

   
 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
   
 
 
 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, NY 
October 30, 2019 



 
    

    
             

 
 

       
      

    
   
   

   
    
   
   

         
 

   

    

      
 

  
               
                           

     
                 

  
                                   

                                 
                                 

                                      
                   

 

   

               
     
         

Transmittal Form 
Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

Charter School Name: New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

Audit Period: 2018-19 
Prior Period: 2017-18 

Report Due Date: Friday, November 01, 2019 
Date Submitted: Thursday, October 31, 2019 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Cynthia Rietscha 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: MBAF 
School Audit Contact Name: Marc Taub 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Please submit the Annual Financial Statement and other associated documents 
to BOTH 

SUNY Charter Schools Institute 
AND 

New York State Education Department 

SUNY CHARTER SCHOOLS INSTITUTE - Reporting Requirements: 
Online Portal: https://my.epicenternow.org/home.aspx 

Required 8 Items: 
1) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes; 
2) Excel template file with appropriate sheets completed: Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and 

Functional Expenses worksheets; and 
3) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance. 

And, if applicable: 
The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are not 
included. 
Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend federal funds in 
excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be submitted by the following 
date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc  If not applicable enter "N/A "

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

If not included, state the reason(s) below. Or, if not applicable fill in"N/A"): 

Management Letter 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Form 990; or Extension Form 8868 Filing Date was extended. 
Federal Single Audit/ Uniform 
Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200  N/A 



   

       
 

 
                                     

     
  

       
                   

         
 

7) 

8) 

Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200,  

Subpart F 
Corrective Action Plan N/A 

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT - Reporting Requirements: 
Online Portal: https://nysed-cso-reports.myreviewroom.com/ 

Required Items: 
1) This transmital form (a copy of the Excel file containing the four schedules Does NOT need to be included); 
2) Audited Financial Report; 

And, if applicable: 
3) Management Letter and Response; 
4) Federal Single Audit/Uniform Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. 



      
   

    

 
     
     

   
 

     
  

    

 

 

   

 
       
     
 

       
           
 

 

 
 

                  

 

 

 

  

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 2018-19 2017-18 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 622,060 $ 644,767 
Grants and contracts receivable 83,724 150,123 
Accounts receivables - 4,136 
Prepaid expenses 29,871 44 

Contributions and other receivables - -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 735,655 799,070 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 2,404 3,809 

OTHER ASSETS 501,313 -

TOTAL ASSETS 1,239,372 802,879 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 711,589 $ 137,564 
Accrued payroll and benefits 90,120 83,274 
Deferred Revenue -
Current maturities of long-term debt -
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable -

52,741 

Other 103,427 74,480 
TOTAL CURRENT 905,136 348,059 

 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent - -
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities TO AL LONG-TE  - -

LIABILITIES - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 905,136 348,059 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 334,236 454,820 

Temporarily restricted - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS 334,236 454,820 



  
 

       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS 1,239,372 802,879 

CK - Should be zero 0 -



      
  

    

    
   

   
   

   
   

       
   

     
     

     

 
 
 

 
   

   
 

  

     

   

 
 

       
    

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2019 

Unrestricted 

2018-19 
Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

2017-18 

Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

Resident Student Enrollment 
Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts 
State and local 
Federal - Title and IDEA 
Federal - Other 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 

Foundations 
Individuals 
Corporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 

Net assets released from restriction 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$2,683,317 $ 
$926,542 

96,855 
177,053 
25,641 

-
-
-

3,909,408 

$ 2,069,560 $ 
1,962,341 

-
4,031,902 
525,083 

4,556,984 

(647,576) 

$ 500,000 $ 
-
-
-

5,288 
21,704 

-
526,992 

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,683,317 
926,542 

96,855 
177,053 
25,641 

-
-
-

3,909,408 

2,069,560 
1,962,341 

-
4,031,902 
525,083 

-
4,556,984 

(647,576) 

500,000 
-
-
-

5,288 
21,704 

-
526,992 

$ 

$ 

2,275,350 
1,067,905 

82,500 
256,338 

7,772 
-
-
-

3,689,865 

1,744,824 
1,317,304 

-
3,062,128 
376,972 

-
3,439,100 

250,765 

-
-
-
-

25,903 

-
25,903 



   

       
   

    

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (120,585) - (120,585) 276,668 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

454,820 

-
-
-

454,820 

-
178,152 

-

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 334,236 $ - $ 334,236 $ 454,820 



      
   

    

    
       
       
 

     

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

 
 

     

    
   

     

    
       

     

       
       

       

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

(120,584) 
-
-
-

1,405 
-
-

63,768 
(27,196) 
574,025 

-
6,846 

-
-

(13,007) 
-

(10,787) 
(497,177) 
(22,707) 

$ 

$ 

276,668 
-
-
-

476 
-
-

(54,964) 
-

94,691 
-

(115,491) 
-
-

(132,605) 
-

69,177 
(4,136) 

133,816 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ 

-
-
- $ 

(4,285) 
-

(4,285) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 

-
-
- $ 

-
-
-

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ (22,707) 
644,767 

$ 622,060 

$ 

$ 

129,531 
515,236 
644,767 



      
   
    

   
 

 
                 

   
 

 
     

       

   
 

     
           
                 
   

   
   

 
    

   
 

 

 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

No. of 
Positions 

8.00 
24.00 

-

Regular 
Education 

$ 
238,259 
636,124 

-

Program Services 
Special Other 

Education Education 
$ $ 

220,075 
792,694 

- -

$ 
Total 

458,334 
1,428,818 

-

Supporting Services 
Management 

Fund-raising and General 
$ $ $ 

- 384,215 
-
- -

Total 

384,215 
-
-

Total Salaries and Staff 32.00 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interes  
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 

OTHER 

874,383 
162,718 
36,851 

209,415 
1,942 
7,930 

529,777 
-

7,478 
19,175 
21,510 
11,641 
2,585 
4,442 
643 

55,961 
27,204 
48,927 
24,705 

796 
21,477 

1,012,769 
198,434 
42,684 

149,413 
1,385 
5,658 

372,946 
-

5,336 
13,681 
15,582 
8,138 
2,671 
4,665 
479 

40,381 
19,792 
34,873 
17,787 

568 
15,099 

1,887,152 
361,153 
79,535 

358,828 
3,327 

13,588 
902,723 

-
12,814 
32,856 
37,092 
19,779 
5,256 
9,107 
1,122 

96,342 
46,996 
83,800 
42,492 
1,364 

36,575 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

384,215 
68,875 
16,193 
10,876 

101 
7,295 
5,258 

-
5,780 
996 

1,386 
-

1,963 
1,576 

50 
4,900 
1,797 

(0) 
13,540 

41 
242 

384,215 
68,875 
16,193 
10,876 

101 
7,295 
5,258 

-
5,780 
996 

1,386 
-

1,963 
1,576 

50 
4,900 
1,797 

(0) 
13,540 

41 
242 

Total Expenses $ 2,069,560 $ 1,962,341 $ - $ 4,031,902 $ - $ 525,083 $ 525,083 

-



   

2017-18

$ 

$ 

Total 

842,549 
1,428,818 

-
2,271,367 
430,028 
95,728 

369,704 
3,428 

20,883 
907,981 

-
18,594 
33,852 
38,478 
19,779 
7,219 

10,683 
1,172 

101,242 
48,793 
83,800 
56,032 
1,405 

36,817 
4,556,984 

$ 

$ 

887,979 
1,080,746 

-
1,968,725 
352,688 
98,425 

341,224 
-

2,115 
322,107 

-
12,454 
32,780 
17,132 
24,998 
3,881 

12,237 
2,802 

89,417 
35,378 
68,612 
38,974 

476 
14,675 

3,439,100 







      
          

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

SCHOOL 
Name: New Visions AIM Charter High School I 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Cynthia Rietscha 
Contact Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Contact Email: 
Contact Phone: 

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 
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PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 
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8 9 10 11 12 
45 64 38 33 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 

Page 



   
     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
ALANCE SHEET 

2019-20 

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 

-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - - - - -

-LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - - - -
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Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL I 
2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 
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Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/15/2019 • Last updated: 07/29/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Elizabeth 
Chu 

Melanie 
Harris 

Sharon 
Hayes

Garret 
Lynch

Kelly
Roman 

Marina 
Schreiber 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Trustee/M
ember 

Chair 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Treasurer 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

06/22/20
17 

06/22/20
17 

01/31/20
19 

04/30/20
18 

06/22/20
17 

06/22/20
17 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

12/31/20
22 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

8 

12/31/20
22 

9 

12/31/20
22 

5 or less 

12/31/20
21 

11 

12/31/20
22 

9 

12/31/20
22 

11 
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Musa Ali 

7 
Shama 

Secretary N/A Yes 1 
04/30/20
18 

12/31/20
21 

12 

8 

Becky
Zofnass Trustee/M

ember 
N/A Yes 1 

04/30/20
18 

12/31/20
21 

7 

9 Yes 

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

8 

1 

0 

8 

12 

12 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/01/2019 • Last updated: 07/19/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

NEW VISIONS AIM CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL ISection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 

AIM I is committed to attracting and retaining
at risk students including those who are
economically disadvantaged, English
Language Learners/Multilingual Learners
(ELLs/MLLs) and students with disabilities; as
well as students affected by their histories
with foster care and incarceration. 

AIM I executed comprehensive recruitment
strategies to meet it’s enrollment targets
going into 2018 2019. Our efforts included
targeting Community School District (CSD)
23 along with the surrounding districts to
conduct outreach to agencies and
community based organizations who serve
our target populations. 

AIM I staff connected with middle and highEconom schools and key community basedically organizations in the surrounding areas andDisadva feeder areas of the current student ntaged population. This included outreach and
connections with staff at various sites 
located in Districts 23, 16, 17, 19, 18 and 32. 

With the support of New Visions, AIM I 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

In 2019 20, AIM I will continue to work to 
attract and retain at risk students including
those who are economically disadvantaged,
English Language Learners/Multilingual
Learners (ELLs/MLLs) and students with
disabilities. In addition, AIM I will serve 
students affected by their histories with
foster care and incarceration. 

Similar to the recruitment efforts executed 
for 2018 2019, we will continue to execute a 
comprehensive approach that includes
outreach to Community School District (CSD)
17, along with the surrounding districts and
community. We will identify key feeder
schools and CBOs by reviewing current
students’ previous academic progress and/or
referring agency and continue to build
partnerships with them. Our efforts will
continue to include the following strategies:
attending school fairs and individual middle
and high school recruiting events, conducting
in person, email and mail outreach to
community based organizations in the
surrounding school neighborhood, as well as
conducting direct outreach in the community. 

AIM I will continue to share admission and 
eligibility information to over 200 community 

1 / 4 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

admissions information and eligibility was
shared with over 200 community partners,
middle schools and key city agencies.
Additional recruitment strategies included:
disseminating information at community
based meetings like the Community
Partnership Program meetings for the East
New York community, where social service
agencies and staff gather to share resources
and posting flyers in the community, such as
local businesses, community centers and
other high traffic areas. 

In addition to the recruitment strategies
referenced above, AIM I, with the support of
New Visions, shared bilingual information
with community organizations that work with
immigrant communities. This information
promoted the school model and population
we serve. To facilitate the admissions 
process for families, the application was
available in English and Spanish both online
and in paper format. Families had the choice
to drop off, fax or mail their application and
given the option to apply over the phoneEnglish
with access to bilingual staff. Langua 

ge
AIM I benefits from the New Visions’ network Learner 
connections with agencies and organizationss/Multili
that support families of students withngual
disabilities, English LanguageLearner 
Learners/Multilingual Learners (ELLs/MLLs),s 
and students who are economically
disadvantaged. New Visions has an
extensive database of over 500 partner
organizations that support families
throughout Brooklyn and New York City,
including organizations that provide social
services to high need families such as those
in the foster care and shelter systems. We
connected with them via mailings and emails
to promote AIM I’s application and
information about our recruitment process. 

In addition to the recruitment strategies
referenced above, AIM I made efforts to 
recruit and enroll students with disabilities as 
evidenced by the number of students
currently enrolled. We were intentional inStudent making sure the schools, CBOs and other 

partners, middle schools, and keys city
agencies. With the support of New Visions,
AIM I plans to create new marketing and
branding materials to attract new students.
The materials will convey our commitment to
supporting students who are economically
disadvantaged, English Language
Learners/Multilingual Learners (ELLs/MLLs),
and students with disabilities. We believe 
that it is important to solicit the support of
social service agencies and community
based organizations. Flyers and other
marketing materials will be disseminated to
local businesses, community centers, and
other high traffic areas. 

For 2019 2020, AIM I will continue to 
encourage families with ELL/MLL students
who are eligible to apply. We will continue
providing bilingual information and
facilitating the admissions process for
families by offering the application in English
and Spanish ( both online and in paper
format). Applications will continue to be
accepted online, via mail, fax, drop off or
over the phone with access to bilingual staff.
We will also review what other languages are
emerging in our district and student
population and plan for information to be
translated into those languages. 

We will continue our collaborative effort with 
New Visions in order to connect with various 
organizations that support students with
disabilities,English Language
Learners/Multilingual Learners (ELLs/MLLs),
and economically disadvantaged families. We
will access the database that support
families in Brooklyn. Included in the database
are organizations that support the foster care
and shelter systems. We will connect with
them by on site visits, mailings, telephone
calls, and emails. During the connecting
process, AIM I’s application and information
will be distributed. 

For 2019 2020, AIM I will continue to make 
efforts to recruit and enroll students with 
disabilities by utilizing strategies executed
previously. We will continue to partner with
schools and community constituents to
receive referrals for students with disabilities. 
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s with 
Disabilit 
ies 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

organizations we connected with knew we
support students with disabilities. We also
obtained referrals from the New York City
Department of Education’s District 79 and its
Referral Centers for High School Alternatives,
centers with a mission to reconnect 
disconnected youth with schools. 

We anticipate that word of mouth referrals
will be done by parents and students who
have graduated and by students who are
currently enrolled. In addition, our marketing
materials will reflect our commitment to 
serving and supporting students with
disabilities. 

We make every effort to ensure the success
and retention of our most vulnerable 

Econom 

students by providing academic and social
supports. The school used the Response to
Intervention (RtI) framework to monitor
student progress in all grades, not only
incoming students. Using this framework, the
school used multiple data points to identify
areas of need in four domains: number of 

ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

Regents passed and credit accumulation,
social emotional support (measured by
average daily attendance), literacy needs
and math. For example, student attendance
was closely monitored as it is a well
established predictor of student outcomes.
New Visions’ data tools provided up to date
daily attendance data for individual students
which allowed the school to monitor and 
intervene quickly with individualized support
plans. 

The school worked to identify ELL students at
the time of enrollment so that a support plan
was put in place immediately. Families also
completed a Home Language Identification
Survey (HLIS) at this time to determine if a
student should be administered the New York 
State Identification Test for English Language
Learners (NYSITELL). The results from the
NYSITELL determined the student’s eligibilityEnglish for English as a Second Language/English asLangua a New Language (ESL/ENL) services. Toge support the school staff, New VisionsLearner provided regular professional developments/Multili opportunities for both special education andngual ELL staff and resources to guide theLearner development of the school’s specials education and ELL programs including how
to identify any general education students
who might not be responding to the 

In addition to what was done in the previous
year, AIM I will continue to make efforts to
ensure the success and retention of our most 
vulnerable students by providing academic
and social supports for all students.
Specifically, AIM I will differentiate students
based on academic progress and focus on a
house model approach to academic
achievement. Socio Emotional Assessments 
(Resiliency Survey) provided as a pre & post
assessment to assess students’ overall well
being, capacity, self motivation and
resiliency, for the purposes of tracking
development in relationship with each
student’s academic achievement. 

In addition to efforts used previously, for the
2019 2020 SY AIM I will hire an ELL teacher 
to support and retain students who are
English Language Learners (ELLs), the school
will hire an ENL/Bilingual
coordinator/instructional specialists
dependent upon the number of ELLs in the
school population and the school’s budget. In
order to support our retention efforts, we
plan to reflect and provide feedback
regarding the successes of each child from
the past school year. Parents will be asked to
sign up for regular progress meetings for
his/her child. Lastly, we believe that it is
important to have all teachers trained to
understand the dynamics and needs of ELL
students. Thus, all classroom teachers will 
incorporate in their lessons how they plan to
address the needs of ELL students and the 
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strategies and programs outlined. special education students. We will use the
Additionally, ELL students were also progress Push in model for ELL services in to 
monitored using the RtI framework and appropriately identified classrooms and offer
assessed through the administration of extensive one on one tutoring to all ELL
NYSESLAT. students. 

The school worked to identify special needs
students at the time of enrollment so that a 
support plan is put in place immediately. If a
student was identified as having an IEP, the
school staff met with the family to review the
student’s IEP and to make sure the familyStudent understood the supports being offered tos with their child. Furthermore, students with Disabilit disabilities were provided direct supporties services through integrated co taught
classrooms (ICT), special education teacher
support service (SETSS) classes, reading
interventions, mandated counseling and any
related services, as outlined on the IEP. 

In addition to efforts used previously, for the
SY 2019 2020 AIM I will ensure that we 
have a Special Education teacher for each
content area and create integrated co
teaching classes, which will ensure SPED
students have in classroom supports for
academic success. AIM I will continue to offer 
testing accommodations support our
instruction team with access to ongoing
learning and trauma informed pedagogical
training. 

Students with disabilities will be identified at 
the time of enrollment, so that a support plan
is put in place immediately. Students will be
identified as at risk via Performance Series 
assessment, intake orientation, and through
the AIM Intake process. A Literacy plan will
be developed to support struggling readers
using the tools Read 180 & System 44
through a literacy intervention course. The
Intake process will also include an Intake
Survey, Intake Interview, Socio Emotional
Assessment, Success Plan, & Progress
updates. Assessments will be used to identify
students who are deficient in various subject
areas, as well as referred for SPED and ELL 
services. We will follow up from the “student
find” tool and the Special Education Student
Information System (SESIS). All teachers will
be supported with strategies to support
growth in the areas of co planning, co
teaching, and differentiation. The SPED
department will meet to review IEP’s and
progress of plans with the student, guardian,
APSPED, general education teacher, SPED
teacher, and counselor. Finally, students with
disabilities will have a transition plan that will
support with post secondary planning and
enrollment. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/24/2019 • Last updated: 07/29/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

14 7 7 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

1 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

6 20 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 3 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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New Visions Charter High Schools 

2019-2020 School Calendar - Trimesters 

School Start Date 

Thursday, September 5th 

180 Days Required by NYSED (September-June instructional days, Regents days, and PD days total 184 days) 
September – June: 

◦ 167 instructional/attendance days 

◦ 13 Regents days (including rating days) 
◦ 4 professional development days (September 4th, November 5th, January 27th, June 4th) 
◦ Last day of school is June 26th 

Trimester Instructional Days 

◦ Trimester 1: 54 instructional days 

◦ Trimester 2: 56 instructional days 

◦ Trimester 3: 57 instructional days 

Assessment Dates & Windows 

Fall PSAT/SAT: October 16, 2019 

Spring PSAT/SAT: March 4, 2020 

NYSITELL: August – September 30, 2019 

Fall Performance Series Reading: July 16, 2019 – November 27, 2019 

Winter Performance Series Reading (optional): December 2, 2019 – February 28, 2020 

Spring Performance Series Reading: March 1, 2020 – May 29, 2020 

NYSESLAT Speaking: April 13, 2020 – May 15, 2020 / NYSESLAT LRW: May 4, 2020 – May 15, 2020 

Fall On-Demand Writing: August 19, 2019 – October 4, 2019 / Spring On-Demand Writing: March 16, 2020 – April 3, 2020 

AP Exams: May 4, 2020 – May 15, 2020 

Spring Mock Regents: March 16, 2020 – May 8, 2020 

STAR Math Fall (AIMs only): July 16, 2019 – November 27, 2019 / STAR Math Spring (AIMs only): March 1, 2020 – May 29, 2020 

Purple numbers in right corner indicate instructional days: 184 total (167 attendance days from September to June + 13 Regents days + 4 PD days). Note: NYSED 
requires 180 days per year. For credit purposes NYSED indicates 108 hours for unit (two credits) for full year=54 hours (or 3,240 minutes) = 1 credit per 
semester. New Visions Charter High School students earn 1 credit (3,240 minutes) per trimester. 




























